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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Group strategic report

for the year ended 31 December 2619

The ditectors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2019.
Business review

The Group's key financial and other performance indicators for the year are as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000 Change
Revenue 784,111 719,791 +8.9%
Lirass projil 114,261 117,473 2%
Operating profit 37,044 34,349 +6.3%
Proflt afler tax 13,883 3,634 +282%
Total Equity 385,319 382,125 +0.7%
Current assets as % of current liabilitics 139% 139%
Average headcount 5168 4,997

The Group commenced a new contract in June 2019 with Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) to manage 1.1
million tonnes of waste from nearly 2.3 million residents, the largest such contract in the UK. This invelves the operation of
41 facilities across 24 locations, including mechanical treatment facilities, 20 Hlousehold Waste Recycling Centres (HWRCs)
and an Energy from Wasie lacility (EfW). This has contributed to an increase of £48.7m in Group tumover year on year.

Operationally the Group's encrgy business has continued to perfonmn strongly in 2019; particuiarly the Suffolk facility which
processed 265k tonnes of waste and exported 164,000 megawalts of electricity. The facilities at the Cornwall and Wilton
facilities were successfully reinstated following reduced availability hours in 2018. The lost hours were the subject of
settiement claims on the EPC contractors: the settlement of both of these claims is reflected in the 2019 income statement.

The Group’s Industrial and Commercial collections generated increased profitability in 2019, thanks to efficiency
improvements and the introduction of bill by wcight invoicing. Improved operational performance within the Processing
business, in particular the Group’s recycling facilitics, has also positively impacted the 2019 results. As well as the cantinued
implementation of LEAN methodology, a project was initiated in 2019 1o deep dive into processes and work practices to
further identify areas for simplification and cfficiency improvements. This “Jigsaw” project has lead to more etfective
practices being installed and costs being saved.

A review of the Group’s assels has led to certain facilities being impaired in 2019, the impairments relate (o; Landfill asscts
which, in line with the Group’s stralegy to continue the move away from Landflling activitics, have less volumes and
therefore less value in usc; and an ‘cnd of life’ plastic to fuel processing facility which is currently deemed to hold no valuc
as the technology remains commercizlly unviable and therefore has been fully impaired. Impairments of £10.2m are
included within operating costs.

Construction of new development facilities for a key public sector customer continued to progress in 2019, although the
completion of the construction has been delayed. As a result of these delays an impairment 1o the concession debtor of
£12.6m is included in the 2819 inceme statement. Also related to these delays are liquidated damages due from the EPC
contractor for £8.9m which have been recognised as a pain in the 2019 income statement. Further to this an additioral £9.8m
provision against the concession deblor has been made in relation 1o an engoing dispute between the Group and the customer
over when payment of the facilitics should commence, this is down to different contractual interpretation of the trigger (or
‘acceptance’. The Group and the Customer are aclively seeking resolution to the matter in line with the provisions ol their
contract.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

The SUEZ Recycling and Recovery (R&R) Group has established a risk committee that evaluates the main risks facing the
Group and the measures in place to manage those risks.  The principal risks and unccrtainties facing the Group are broadly
grouped as: operational risks, competitive risks, legislative risks, health and safety risks and financial instrument risks.

Operational risks

The SUEZ R&R Group's operations involve some major public sector contracts, ranging from periods of 7 to 25 years or
more, where default on the contract may result in subslantial compensation payments Lo the client.

Long-term contracts also expose the Group to the risk that the contract’s revenue profile over the life of the contract may
nol be sufficicnl (o compensate the Group for unforescen cost increases, and herce losses may resuit.  The Group has put
in place rigorous tender approval procedures to ensure all risks arc properly considered. The Group’s management and
review procedures are aimed at ensuring any problems are identificd at an early stage and steps arc taken to mitigate any

losses arising.

The suceess of the Group's operations is dependent upon the recruitment and retention of good yuality staff.  The Group’s
stratepy secks to make the SUEZ R&R Group the preferred employer in the waste management sector through its

employment policies.
Competitive risks

Part of the SUEZ R&R Group’s business involves contracts with lecal authorities which are subjecl to periodic competitive
tendcr. Renewal of these contracts is uncertain and based on financial and performance criteria.

T'he remaining business relics upon shori-erm contracts and non-contractual business from industrial and commereial
customers, which is subject 1o nommal price competition in the open market.

Legislative risks

The waste management business is subjecl lo strict legislation and regulation. These standards arc subject to contirucus
revision. Compliance with new standards can imposc additional costs on the Group, and failure to comply could result in
heavy penalties. The Group’s managcement systems aim to ensure compliance with all relevant regulations.

Health and safety risks

The STUEZ R&R Group acknowledges that its employces working within the waste management industry face significant
potential hazards in their everyday work. The Group makcs every effort 1o ensure that its health and safety policies are of
the highest standard, are fit for purpose and arc strictly adhered to on 2 daily basis.

Financial instrument risks

The Group has cstablished # risk and financial management framework whose primary objcctives are to protect the Group
from evcnts that hinder the achievement of the Group’s performance objeclives.

Use of derivatives

On certain major contracts, SUEZ R&R Group associale companies use intercst rate swaps in respect of the related funding
to reduce exposure to interest rate movements.
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for the year ended 31 December 2019

Exposure to price, eredit. (iquidily and cash flow risk

Price risk arises on financial instruments because of changes in, for example, commodity prices or equity prices. The
Group’s major joint venture and associated invesiments, which the Group does not intend to sell in the short-term, are held
at net asset value and are ther¢tore not expused to price risk.

Credil risk is the risk that onc party to a financial instrument wiil cause a financial loss for the other party by tailing to
discharge an obligation. Group policics are aimed at minimising such losses, and require that deferred terms arc only
granted Lo customers who demonstrate an appropriate payment history and satis(y credit worthiness procedures.

Liguidity risk is the risk that an erittty witl enuuuuter difficulty in meeting otiligadons asocisted with financial liabiiitics.

Cash flow risk is the risk of exposure o variability of cash Nows relating to a recognised asset or labitity such as future
interest payments on a variable rate debl.  The Group produces lotg-term cash forecasts and monitors cash flows against
these on a daily basis to ensure all financial obiigations may be met as they fall due. Group funding requirements are
periodicaily agreed with the SUEZ Group.

The Group has catered into fixed rate swap agreements and forward exchanpe contracts to avoid volatility in interest charges
on its loans and valatility of exchange rate movement on payments made in foreign currencies. The Group has applied hedge
accounting requiremnents to account for the derivative swap agreements and the associated loans; their relationships being
accounted for as cash flow hedpes — sce note 25 to the accounts.

Matters covered in the Directors’ report

As permitted by Taragraph 1A of Schedule 7o the Large and Medium-sired Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 certain matters which are required to be disclosed in the stralegic report have been omitled as they are
included in the dircctors’ report, These matters eelate to information relating to environment matters.

COVID-19

‘The companies within the SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Group in the UK (the Group) arc managed centrally by one
Operations Committee. Strategy and palicy are decided upon at this Group level, and thus the risks and issues caused by the
COVID-19 outbreak are being addressed on a group wide basis.

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 virus in the United Kingdom, the Group has continually assessed the risks and impacts
of the pandemic and the associated economic slowdown on its business, The Group’s Gold Command, which consists of
Company directors, other Operations Commitlee members and senior personne! gathers frequently to asscss the evolving
situation rggarding the pandemic and Government legislation, as well as specific guidance for our industry.

The key risks to our business are considered to be as follows:

»  The Health and Safcty of our employces as well as the users of our services.
= A fallin demand for industrial and commerctal collection services associated with the economic slowdown.
s (Cash management resulting from reduced customer receipls.

The Group has taken significant measures to mitigate these risks.
Health and Safety:

The Health and Satety of our cmployees and the gencral public is always the top priority ot the Group; with the outbreak of
COVID-19 further accentuating this. The Group has gone to great lengths to secure sufficient supplies of PPE for our
operational teams. Furthermore, new guidance has been issued to operational teams {in particular those involved with
collections) to manage social distancing protocols. The Group has worked closely with our public sector customers to
define the parameters under which the HHWRCs were able to re-open and the Group and local authoritics have managed
strong communication around this, and social distancing, with the general public. All office based staff were remobilised to
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work from home from mid-March, in line with Public Health England and government guidance. The Group has also been
very active on social media platforms to publicisc and promote sate waste handling guidelines for the general public.

[ndustrial and commercial collections:

The lockdowns and economic slowdown has led to reduced volumes within our collections business. We anticipate that
these velumes may take a period of months to recover to pre-COVID-19 levels and also provide an apportunity to grow.
‘The Group benefits from diverse waste streams, with industrial and collections contributing te about 15% of the Group
revenue. So whilst the drop in industrial and collection {(1&{) tonnage does have an impact on the Group’s revenue and
profitability, we are not overly reliant on I&C. Further measurcs have been implemented to restrict the impact of falling [&C
tonnage on our business, such as mothballing certain vechicles and using the UK Government Coronavirus Job Retention
Scheme (furlough scheme) for some collection staff. We have also supported our 1&C customers that have been most
affected by the lockdown by offering a service holiday during the iockdown perinds.

Cash management:

The slowdown of activity within the UK economy has further highlighted the need for tight cash management. The Group
has continucd to receive cash for the fixed price elements of our contracts with local authorities. The Group has cantinued
to gencraic net cash inflows from its operaling activilics in the period since lockdown in the UK. We arc also ensuring that
we coritinue to pay our key suppliers promptly in line with the guidance set out under the government’s PPN Supplier Relief
programmc. We continue to closely monitor the credit status of our customers, especially in the 1&C business, 1o minimise
our exposure to bad debt risk which is partly mitigated via our credit insurance policics.

Like most businesses, COVID-19 has had an impact on our Group’s financial performance in 2020 which is estimated to be
£14m. The Directors remain confident that our strong relationships with our customers, our long-term contracts and our
diversified business will provide strong foundations for continued success.

Section 172 statement

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’) (as amended by the Companics (Miscellancous Reporting)
Regulations 2018), the Directors provide this statement describing how they have had regard to the matters set out in section
172(1) (2} — () of the Act, when performing their duty to promote the success of the Company, under section 172.

S8172(1)a) The likely consequences of any decision in the long term & S172(1)(e) The desirability of the
company mainiaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct

The focus of the Board has been to drive the Group towards achieving its goals alongside its commitmeat to having a
workforce that more accurately reflects sociely and has developed challenging targets to achicve this, which includes
overhauling our parcntal leave and flexible working policies, improving the gender pay gap and collaborating across the
sector to help drive sector-wide change.

As part of the Group’s drive to become more sustainabie, the Group has set targets as part of its environmental strategy. The
Group is well advanced in developing action plans and engaging with our workforce. The next sieps will be to provide the
necessary training to be able to deliver these targets, as well as engaging with our wider stakeholders.

The directors of the Company delegated certain duties and responsibilities to various committces and receives regular and
timely information {at least monthly) on all key aspects of the business including health and safety, risks and opportunities,
the financial performance of the business, strategy, operational matters, market conditions and sustainability, all supported
by Key Performance Indicatars (KPIs) and identified a list of strategic priorities that were to be reviewed by management

throughout 2019.

S§172(1)(b) The interests of the Company's emplovees
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How the directors promote the interests of the Company’s employees arc set out within the Engagement with employees
section of the Nircctors” report. (page 7)

S172¢1){c) The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others

How the directors promote the need o foster the company s business eclationships with suppliers, customers and others is
set out in the engagement with suppliers, customers and others of the Directors’ report. (page 8)

SI72(1(d) The impact of the Company's operations on the community asd the environment

The Company and our employces believe 1t 18 imporiant W zive somotning bk fo e communitics we work in and to
society. We do this in many ways. We organise these activitics into a programme under our corporate responsibility siratégy
and call it ‘Giving Something Back®. The programme aims to encourage everyone in the company to get invelved with local
causes and supporting nalional charities,

Engagement 1akes place locally through our loca) offices and sites with many of our operations and the planning team having
regular fwo-way conversations with commupity representatives to discuss our activities and the local topics that impact us
both, including via Scicnee, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics (STEM) which helps to improve the lcaming and
career prospects of local prople. at the same time as enhancing our reputation and helping 1o develop our people and our
education programmes, community consultation and involvement through various community Trusts.

During 2019 schools and community groups across the country who wanted 1o know more about waste, and what happens
to it, visited many of our larger facilities that have cducation and visitor centres where groups can learn about the journey of
waste, and see how we handle, process and recover value from it — giving it a second Jile.

Our network of employec education ambassadors, who are all passionate about resources and sharing their knowledge, visit

schools to explain the importance of recycling and responsible waste management in a fun and informative way that links
with the national curriculum. These ambassadors alse visit loca) cvents and county fares.

SI720000) The need to act fairly as berween members of the company
For the year under review we have been a wholly owned subsidiary within the SULZ Recycling and Recovery UK Group.

With the Chief Exgeutive Office and the Finance Director also sitting on our board. Decisions of the Board are also discusscd,
where relevant, at the meetings of the parent company board.

This repart was appraved by the board on 5§ March 2021 and signed on its behatf.

-

e
P .
- o~
sl e
& / o “
C Thorn
Director
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Directors' report
for the year ended 31 December 2019

The dircctors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Directors’ responsibilities statement

The directors arc responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, Dircctors” Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for cach financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accoedance with International Financial Reporting $tandards (“IFRS™)
as adopted by the Europcan Union and applicable law. Under company law the directors must not approve the {inancial
statcments unless they are satisficd that they give a true and fair view of the state of affuairs of the compuny and of the profit

or loss of the company for that petiod.
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are tequired to:

®  sclect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

*  make judgments and accounting cstimates that are reasonable and prudent;

*  statc whether IFRS as adopted by the European Union have been followed subject to any material departures
disciosed and explained in the financial statements;

» provide additivnal disclosures when compliance with specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient 1o enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other evenis and conditions on the entity’s financial position
and financial performance; and

*  prepare the financial statementis on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company

will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the company’s
transactions and disclose with rcasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and ¢nable them to
ensure that (he financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsibie for safeguarding the
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Principal activities
The principai activity of the SUF” Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid Group ("SUEZ R&R Group™) is wasle

management, including the provision of municipal services, industrial and commcrcial waste collections, landfill, recycling
waste and the operation of energy-from-waste facilities, The SUEZ R&R Group forms the United Kingdom waste

management business of the SUEY. Group.
Results and dividends
The group profit for the year, after taxation and minerity interests, ampunted to £13,883,000 (20/8: Prafir £3,634,000,.

No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: £Ni).

Dircctors

The directors who served during the vear and to the date of this report were:

F Duval

[ Palmer-Jones (Resigned | January 2020, re-appointed 3 July 2020}
J Boursier (Resigned 22 May 2020)

J Scanlon (Appointed 1 January 2020)

C Thom {Appointed 1 February 2020)
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Gaing concern

The SUEZ UK R&R group, along with its ultimate parent company SUEZ SA, has considerable financiat resources together
with fong ferm contracts with a number of customers across difterent geographic areas and within different sectors of the
recycling industry. As a resuit, the dircclurs believe that the SUEZ R&R UK group is well placed to manage its business
tisks successfully despite the current uncertain economic outlook.

The UK Group bencfits fram a current account overdrafl facility from the French parent company (SUEZ SA) to finance
day to day activities. It also benelits from long term loans from SUEZ SA regarding some of our major infrastructure
projects. The loans are subject to contractual terms and repayment schedules in line with the operational activities of the
infrastructure that they finance. We consider it highly unlikely that SUEZ SA would cancel the overdratt facility that we
have in place. However, should this unlikcly event occur, we believe we would be able to replace the facility with external
debt thanks to our strong credit reputation and relationships with UK banks. The UK Group currently has no external (non
Group) loans in place. The impact of COVID-19 has beer assessed and factored into the cashflow forecasts for the UK
Group and it is not expected that the overdrafl facility with SUEZ SA will be breached in the next 12 months, with adequate
headraom for any unknown events also.

Having made enquiries, the dircctors have a reasonable expectation that the cornpuny and the group have adequate resources
o continue in operational existence for the foresecable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concem basis
in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Directars' indemnity

The Company has granted indemnity Lo one or more of its dircctors against liabilities in respect of proceedings brought by
third parties, subject to the conditions set out in the Companies Act 2006. Such qualifying third party indemnity provision
remains in force as at the date of approving the directors' repori.

Future developments

The SUEZ R&R Group will continue to seek Lo grow through new contracts, both for industrial and commergial and public
customers

The Group has successfully tendered fuor the operation of # major municipal waste collection contract in Sormerset, which
commenced im April 2020. The contract with Somerset Waste Partnership is one of the largest collection contracts in the
UK, providing collection and waste [ogistivs services to more than 250,000 houscholds across Somerset.  The contract is
for 10 years with a total revenue of £233m.

Engagement with employees

SUEZ R&R Group communicates to ils employees through presentations, inlemat group-wide emails, newsletters, social
media channels and blogs on our intrangt. An annual employee conference, delivered at various local locations around the
counlry, provides a briefing on the Group’s performancc, gives an update on any initiatives that are being introduced and
allows individuals 1o raise questions and concemns.

The Board has direct engagement during site visits, Board presentations, informal lunches, social media channels and the
blogs on our intranet, all of which give our employees the opportunity to interact with members of the Board and scnior
thanagement.

‘UJ Say', the Group's cmployee engagement survey, is carried ouf anonymously every two ycars to highlight arcas of
improvement. The Board considers the results of all employce engagement surveys a good barometer of the workforee’s
confidence in the Group’s surategic direction, optimism in the future and career opportunities. in 2019 the Group improved
its score in every one of the eight key factors when compared with the previous survey. 83% of our employees took the time
to fill in the survey, achieving our highest engagement score to date and helped to raise £20,000 for our charity partner
Macmillan Cancer Support.

In 2019, the Board started to send summarics of key themes from the Group Board meeting via our internal social media
platform. Engagement with employees also takes place through werks councils and various other committees and groups.

7



STUEZ Recycling and Recovery Haoldings UK Ltd

Directors' report
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Erngagement with suppliers, customers and others

Customers
The Board engages with key customers and clients through the Regional Dircctors who provide the Board with regular

information about customers in various reports produced throughout the business by the commercial and management teams.

Suppliers

The Group primarily engages with our suppliers via its website and procurement teams as well as through other business
support functions including the commercial and legal tcams.

The Board receives information through various Group's board reports produced throughout the business.

Cther stakeholders
QOther key stakeholders include the Government, Reguiators and Local Authorities.

The Chief Executive, some directors and senior managers met with members of Government, other political parties and
scnior officials to provide an overview of the recycling and recovery industry and to provide feedback on potential changes
being considered by the Govermment.

Members of Parliament visited a number of our sites during the year. The Government and Ministers gain a better
understanding of the challenges facing the industry which will in turn potentially result in more favourable policies for our

industry.

The Group’s business is heavily regulated with a large number of our key clients being local authorities, We perform
customer engagement surveys and the performance of the business is regularly reported to the Board and OpCom on a
monthly basis. The findings are used to improve customer engagement with knowledge being shared across the Group. On
all large contracts, the Group hosts local community ¢vents to engage with local stakehalders.

Environmental impact

Qur purpose is to protect our chvironment by putling waste to good use.

A crucial element of this is ensuring that the vision of the circular economy — where the waste cycle can work with the
cconomic cycle to return waste as a secondary resource back into production and consumption — becomes a reality and value

is cxtracted from wastc.

n 2019 the SUEZ R&R UK Group:

*  Provided municipal collection services for a population of 1,680,549 and 23,620 I1&(C customers, collecting a total
of 1,536,435.06 tonncs:
s Handled a total of 10,334,293 tonnes:
o 1,536,435.06 tonnes collected
o 3,396,686 tonncs transferred
o 5,401,171.809 tonnes treated (sum of waste treated: inputs counted)
+  Recycled and/or recovered 4,206,013 tonnes:
o 2,175,361 .65 tonnes treated via EFW
Recycled 1,001,424.97 tonnes
Produced 71,397.34 tonnes compost
Recycled and/er recovered 360,994.30 tonnes wood
Produced 176,051.8 tonnes Solid Recovered Fueis (SRF)
o Produced 420,782.95 tonnes Refuse Derived Fuels (RDF)
» Reduced waste to disposal to 620,023.20 tonncs
»  (enerated 1,573,075.53 MWh of electricity from our landfill gas and energy from waste facilities
e Restored 25.8 ha of landfill and planted 259 trees

Qo 00
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¢ Ilelped our customers avoid -1,860,140.54 wCO?2 (through recycling, recovery and clectricity/thermal energy
generation)

Disabled employees

Applications for employment from disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the aptiludes ot the

applicant concemed. In the cvent of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is made to ensure that their

employment with the Group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. I is the policy of the Group that the

training, carcer developmenl and promotion of disabled persons should, as far as pessible, be identical with that of other

employees

Matters covered in the strategic report

As permitted by Paragraph 1A of Schedale 7 to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups {Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 certain matters which are required to be disclosed in the dirgotors’ report have been onitted as they are
included in the stratcgic report. These matters relate lo financial instrument risk.

Disclosure of informatios tu auditor

Each of the persons who are directors at the time when this directors’ report is approved has confirmed that:

. 50 far as that director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company and the Group's auditor
is unaware, and

. that each dircetor has taken all the sieps that ought to have been taken as a director in order to be aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Company and the Group's auditor is aware of that information.

Re-appointment of avditor

The auditor, Mazars [.LP, will be proposed lor reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006,

This report was approved by the board on 5 March 2021 and signed on its behalf.

C Thorn
Director
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Independent auditor's report to the member of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Haldings UK Lid
Opinion

We have audiled the financial statements of SUE7 Recyeling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid (the ‘parent company™) and
its subsidiaries (“thc group’) for the ycar ended 31 December 20t9 which comprisc the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive income, Consolidated and Comparty Statement of financial position, the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Changes in Equity, the Consolidated and Company Statement of Cash Flaw and the related notes. The financial
reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and International Financial Reporling
Standards (IFRSs} as adopted by the Furopean Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as applied in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion:

» the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as
at 31 December 2019 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended,

¢ the group financial stalements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union,

¢ the parent company financial statcments have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

» the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

Wt conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs {(UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsihilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
siatements section of cur report. We are independent of the company in accerdance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other cthical responsibilitics in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit cvidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter — Impairment of service coucession financial asset

In forming our opinion on the financial statcments, which is not modified, we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosures made in note 3 to the financial statements conceming the carrying value of the service concession financial
assets, This is due W a materiality uncertainty over whether a facility has successful passed a test of relizhility under a
customer contracl, as the Independent Certifier has nat yet provided the Group with the relevant certificate of acceptance

at the date of this audil report,

I Independent Ceriifier does not provide the certificate of Acceptance in respect of the test of reliability performed in
2020 a further impairment would be required. No further impairment charge has been recognised in the financial
statements at the prescnt time in relation to this.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing Lo report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

e the directors’ usc of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

* the directors have not disclosed in the financial stalements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s ot the parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for

issue.
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Independent anditor's report tn the member of SUUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd
Other information

The directors arc responsible for the other information. The other infonnation comprises the information included in the
annual report and financial stalements, other than the financial statcments and our auditor’s repert thereon. Our opinion on
the financial statements does not cover ihe other information and, except 1o the extent otherwisc explicitly stated in our
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Inn connedtien with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the ether information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statemcnts or our knowledge obtaincd in
the audit or othcrwise appears tn be materially misstated. Tf we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to rcpont that fact.

We have nothing te report in this regard.
Qpinion on other matter preveribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based en the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

»  the information given in the Strategic Report and Dirgelors® Report for the financial ycar for which the
financial statements arc prepared is consistent with the financial statements: and

* the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Reporl have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirtments,

Matters an which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its cnvironment obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identilicd matenal misstatements it Ui Stialegic report and the Dirccters’ repovt

‘We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us {o report 1o you if,
in our opinion:

= adequate accounling records have not been kept, or retumns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

s ihc linancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums; or

*  cortain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

®  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audil.

Responsibilities of Directors

As cxplained mere fully in the directors’ responsibilities staternent set out on page 6, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the (inancial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control
as the dirgclors determine is necessary to enable the preparation ot financial statements that are free [rorn material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial stutements. the directors ure responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s ability
to continug as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidale the group or the parent company or to ccase aperations, or have
no realistic alicrnative but Lo do so.

Anditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misslatement, whether due ta fraud or crror, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid

Independent auditor's report to the member of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Litd

is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantce that an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK) will always detect
a material misstatement when it cxists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and arc considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements,

A further description of our responsibilitics for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's websile at www fre org uk/auditorsresponsibilitics. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companics
Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to statc to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
accepl or assume responsibility 10 anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

3. Sesr—

Jonathan Seaman ¢Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of

Mazars LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Tower Bridge House

St Katharine's Way

London

Ei1W 1DD

Dae:  Mar5,2021



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK T .td

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Nate £000 £000
Revenue s 784,111 719,791
Cost of sales (66%,139) (602,318)
Grass profit 114981 117,473
Administrative expenses {(96.972) (82,613)
Impaiement charge on property, planl & equipmen 1¢ {10,184) i)
Other operating incomge 6 29,218 -
Operating profit 7 37,044 34,849
Finance income 11 20,921 27,834
Finance costs 12 (28.500) (28.969)
Other gains and losses 13 (13,502) (21,125)
Share of loss of assoclates and joint ventures 17 (2054 (4.813)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 13,909 1,776
Taxation w0 @6 0 {#12)
Profit for the year 13,883 3,634
Other comprehensive income:
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
Actuarial (losses)/gains related to pension scheme 31 (4,258) 3.670
Deferred ax attributable to actuarial ([osses)/gains 714 (624)
{tems that will be reclassified to profit and loss
Changes in fair value of cash flow hedges - 289
Dcferred tax attributable cash flow hedge reserve movements - (49)
Changes in fair value hedge reserve relating to associates (8,937) 10,305
Deferred tax atiributable to hedge reserve movements relating to
associates 1,519 {1,752)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,931 15,473
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent 13,883 3.564
Non-controlling interests ————~ T
13,883 3,634
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parcnt 2,931 15,403
Non-controlling interests - 70
2,931 15,473

All profit and comprehensive ingome is attributable to continuing operations
13



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK 1.1d

Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2019

Non-current assets

Intanpible assets and goodwiil

Property, plant & cquipment

Investments

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

Financial asscts

Current assefs
Inventories
Financial assets

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current Liabhilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings

Trade and other payables
Corporation tax payable

Net current zsseis

Totzl asscts less current liabilities
Nan-corrent Liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Other non-current financial liabilitics
Provisions for liabifities

Deferred tax liability
Provisions

Net assets excluding pension scheme liabilities

Net defined benefit pension scheme liability

Total ret assets

Note

15

17

17
19

18

19
20

21

21

22

22

24
26

3t

14

2019
£000

167,290
278,741
4

2,597

202.309
650,941

12,549
6,128
425,737
12,531

456,945

(35,754)
(291,225)

(1.218)
(328,197)

128,748

779,689

(277,591)
0]

(9,029)
{94,104)

398,958

13,639

385319

2018
£000

167,654
259,868
4

5,120

208841
642,487

9,419
5,396
388,697
32.693

436,205

{27,126}
(284,452)
(1365}
(313,143

123,062

763,549

(272,752}

1)

(9.416)
(90.017)

393,323

0.3

382723



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Litd

Consclidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019 (continued)

Note

Equity

Called up share capital 27
Share premath dccount 23
Capital redemption reserve 28
Hedging rescrve 28
Other reserves 28
Retained earnings 28

Total shareholder’s equity
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

2019
£000

373,741
14,471
3,457
(57,466)
11,793
39323
385,319

345,319

2018
£060

373741
1471

3457

¢50,048)
11,793

29.027
382,441

234

382,725

The {inanciaf statements werc approved and authorised for issue by the board and were signed en its behalf on

5 March 2021
—
T
R
< ' ~
C Thorn
Director




SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid
Registered number: 03475737

Company statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2019

019 2018
Note £000 £000
Non-current assets
Property, plant & eguipment 16 22,157 27,606
Investments 17 538,566 538,566
Financial assets 19 240,769 250,002
Deferred tax 24 560 - 847
802,052 817,021
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 19 825,260 814,820
Corporation tax recoverable 19 1,336 1,386
Cash and cash cquivalents 20 11,136 30.562
837,732 847,268
Current liabiliticy
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 21 (23,327) (24,178)
Trade and other payables 21 (988162} (879.049)
(1,011,489) (1,003,227)
Net current liabilities {173.757) (135.959)
Total assets less current liabilities 628,295 841,062
Non-current Liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 22 (229.316) (262,359)
Provisions for liabilities
Provisions 26 {400) (738)
Net assets excluding pension scheme assets 398,579 397,965
Defined bencfit pension scheme asset 31 3,306 2.884
Net assets e AOLEBS 400,849
Equity
Called up share capital 27 373,741 373,741
Share premium account 28 14,471 14,471
Capital redemption reserve 28 3,457 3,457
Retained earnings 28 10216 9. 130
Total equity 1) 400,849

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issuc by the board and were signed on its behalf on
5 March 2021.

C Tharn
Director
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SUEZ, Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK L.id

Cansolidated cask [low statement
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Operating activities
Profil before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
flows:

Depreciation and impaicment of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets
[mpairment of property, plant and equipment
Share-hased payiucal o pense

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant ang egulpmenl
Finance income

Finance costs

Other gains and losses

Sharg of profit of an associatc and a joint venlure
Movements in provisions and pensions

Construction loss recognised on concession arrangements

Working capital adjustments:

Increase in trade and other receivables and prepayments
Increase in inventories

Inercase in trade and other payables
Increase/(decrease) in balances with group companies
Decrcase/f{increase) in non-~currcnt assels

lutercst reccived

Interest and commitment fees paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Praceeds from sale of property, plamt and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangibles

Decrease in concession financial asset

Increase/decrease in loans provided to associate companics
Dividend from joint venture and associate

Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

[ncrease in loans and borrowings from group undertakings
Decrease in lease abitities

Pecrease in bank loans

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activitics

Net decrease in cash and cash cquivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Cash and cash equivalents represent

Cash
Overdraft

19

2019
£000

13,909

29,972
5.738
10,180

4

(330)
(20,921)
28,500
13,502
2,054
5,454

(20,755)
(3,130)
3,996
1,451
1,720
1,579
(30,061)

42,312

3912
(25431)
(5,373)
952
6,284
5369

(14,287)
(33,894)
{(14.293)
(48,187)
(20,162)

32,693
12,531

12,531

12,531

2018
£000

7,776

29,428
5,036

3

as53
(27834
28,969
21,125
4,813
(5,608)
1,268

(13,348)
(1,468)
17,231
(27,851)
(847)
4,452
(31,885
(1,302)
10,246

637
{28,034)
{1,039)
16.841
6,915
3,374

(1,286)

(15,597)
(2,309)
£6,038)

(23,944)

(14,984)

47,677
32,693

32,693

32,693



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Company cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2019

Opcrating activitics
Profit/(Loss) before tax

Adjustmenis to reconcile profit before tax to net cash
flows:

Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment expense

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Financc income

Finance cosls

Movements in provisions and pensions

Working capital adjustments:

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables and prepayments
Decreasc/(increase) in balances with group companies
(Increase)/decrease in rade and other payables

Interest reccived

Interest und commitment fees paid

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operaling activities
Investing activities

Proceeds trom sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Decrease in loans to group undertakings

Dividends received

Net cash flows used in investing activitics

Financing activities
Decrease in loans and borrowings from group undertakings

Net cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
Cash and cash equivalents represent

Cash
Ovcerdraft

20

2019
£600

1,018

2,041

4

(54)
(24,692)
24,205
(336)

(2,072)
1,452
(284)

24,692
(24,295)

1,679

50
{3,317
15,886
160

12,789

(33,894)
(33,894)

(19,426)
30,562

11,136

11,136

11,136

2018
000

214

3,029
8

(23,416)

25,893
(2,294)

17,024
10,306
11.611
23,416
(25,894)
(1,302)

33,595

(9,241)
8,089

1,152

(15,597)
(15,597)

21,846
8,713

30,559

30,559

30,559



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid

Nates to the financial stalements
fur the year ended 31 Decernber 2019

1. General Information

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid is a limited company incorporated in England and Wales and
domiciled in the United Kingdom. These financial statctiients cover the consotidation of the entity and its subsidiarics.
The address of its regisiered office and principal place of business is SUEZ House, Grenfcll Road, Maidenhead,
Berkshire, SL6 1ES.

The principal activity of the SUEZ Recycling and Recavery Holdings UK Ltd Group ("SUEZ R&R Group'} is waste
Tmanagement, mcludlig e provision of manicipal sorvicen, industrial and commercial wasie gollections, landFil,
recycling waste and the operation of encrgy-lrom-waste lacilities.

The Company’s intermediate parent company is SUEZ Recycling & Recovery UK Group Heldings Lid, incorporated
and registered in the United Kingdom, which owns 100% of the Company ordinary share capital. The ultimate parent
compuny is SUEZ SA, a company incorperated and registered in France.

The largest group of which SIGEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd is a member and for which Group
financial statements are drawn up is that headed by SUEZ SA, whose consolidated financial statements are available
from Tour CB21. 16 Plas de L'1ris, 92040 Paris la Defense Cedex, France.

The financial statements have been presented in Pounds Sterling as this is the functional currency of the Group and
all values arc rounded to the nearest thousand pounds (£000) except when otherwise indicated.

2. Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation of finuncial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards as
adopted by the EU (“IFRS™) and the Companies Act 2006 and The Luarge and Medium sized Companics and
Groups Regulations 2008/410 (‘Regulations’).

The company and consolidated financiat statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention.
except for financial instruments that are accounted for according to the financial instrument categories defined
by IFRS 9. The preparation of financial statements in compliance with IFRS requires the usc of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requircs management to exercise judgment in applying the Group's accounting
policies (see note 3).

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The financial statements consolidate the accounts of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid and ali
of its subsidiary undertakings (‘subsidiaries’).

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The financial statemmcnts of subsidiaries are included lig the
consolidated financial statements from the date that contrel commences until the date that conirol ceases. Intra-
group bulences and transactions and any unrealised imcome and expenses arising from intra-group Iransactions
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

No profit and loss account is presented for the company as permitied by section 408 of the Companies Act
2006. The profit for the year was £679 000 (2018- £774,000).

21



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holddings UK Lid

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

2.3 Going Concern

24

The SULZ R&R UK Group, aleng with its ullimate parent company SUEZ SA, has considerable linancial
resources together with long term contracts with a number of customers across different geographic areas and
within different scctors of the recycling industry. As a consequence, the directors believe that the SUEZ R&R
UK Group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully despite the current uncertain economic

outiook.

The SUFZ R&R UK Group is managed as a single business on a day to day basis, therefore the Company going
congern assessment is intrinsically linked to the overall Group’s going concern assessment.

The UK Group benefits irom a current account overdralt facility from the French parent company (SUEZ SA)
tc finance day lo day activitics. It also benefits from long term loans from SUEZ SA regarding some of our
major infrastructure projects. The loans are subject to contractual terms and repayment schedules in line with
the operational activitics of the infrastructure that they finance. We consider it highly unlikely that SUEZ SA
would cancel the overdraft facility that we have in placc.

However, should this unlikely cvent occur, we believe we would be able to replace the facility with external
dcbt thanks to our strong credit reputation and rclationships with UK banks. The UK Group currently has no
external (non Group) loans in place. The impact of COVID-19 has been assesscd and factored into the cashflow
torecasts for the UK Group and it is not expected that the overdraft facility with SUFZ SA will be breached in
the next 12 months, with adequate headroom for any unknown cvents.

Having made cnquiries, the directors have a reasonable expeciation that the Group, and therefore the Company,
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foresceable future. Accordingly, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the annual report and accounts.

Turnover

Turmnover is meuasured at the fair vaiuc of the consideration received or receivable once performance obligations
have been fillfifled. Tumover is reduced for value added taxes and trade discounts and commodity rebates. The
methodology and assumptions for the calculations of trade discounts and commedity rebates are monitored and
adjusted regularly with reference to contractual and legal obligations, historical trends, past expericnces and
projected market conditions. The nature of the service provided by the Group means that returns er refunds are
extremely limited. Landfilt Tax is included within both revenue and cost of sales.

Sale of Recyclates

Revenue from the sale of recyclates is recognised when the performance obligation has been met. the goods are
delivered and titles have passcd and therefore at a point in time.

Disposal of Waste

Revenue from waste processing, treatment and landfill facilities is recognised when the perfermance obligation
has been met which is deemed to be when waste {s physically received at the Group sites.

Collection revenues are recognised at the point of collection from customer sites. For municipai collections,
revenue is recognised in accordance with quantitics specified in the customer contracis.

Opcration and maintenance revenue is mcasured by a contractual fixed and variable fee. Dilferences between
thc amounts recognised in the income statement and amount invoiced at the period end are shown in the
statement of {inancial position as a contract asset or contract liability.

Electricity Revenue

Energy generation revenue is recognised at the point that power is supplied to the customer based on the quantity
of units supplied.
22



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK 1.4d

Notes to the finuncial statemments
for the year ended 31 December 2019

5

2.6

Construction Revenue

Construction Revenue is recognised over time as a proportion of the construction cost to date compared to the
total cxpected construction cost plus profit margin,

Transaction prices are derived by underlying contraciual arrangements.  Where multiple performance
obligations exist, the transaction price is allocated on an estimate based on cxpected costs plus a4 margin,

There are no constraints for the group over variable revenue copsiderations.

Goodwill

Recognition of goodwill
Goodwill is measured as being the amount by which the total of:

i The consideration transfemed;

i The amount of any non-conirolling interest in the acquired company; and

i In a business combination achieved in stages, the fair value at acquisition-date of the previousiy
held intercsts in the acquired company;

Exgceds the accounting net balance of identifiable assets acquired and liabilitics assumed.

The amount of goodwill recognized at the acquisition date canuot be adjusted afler the end of the measurement
periad.

Goodwill relating to associates and joint ventures are recorded respectively under ‘Investments in associates’
and ‘Investments in joint ventures’.

Measurement of goodwill

Goodwill is not amortized but is tested for impairment each year, or more frequently when an indication of
impairment is identified. [mpairment (csts are carried out at the evel of cash-generating units (CGUs), which
constitute groups of assets generating cash inflows that arc largely independent of the eash inflows from other
cash-generating units.

The methods used to carry oul thesc impairment tests are described in Note 2.2 ‘Impairment of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets’.

Impairment fosses in relation  goodwill cannot be reversed and are shown under Impairment in the income
statement. Impairment losses on goodwill relating to associates and joint ventures are respectively reported
under “Share of profiloss of associates and joint ventures’.

Other intungible assets
Intangiblc assets other than goodwill are split into concession agreements and other finite intangible asscts

Concession agreements

Cancession agreement intangible assets relate to umounts paid or payeble as consideration for rights relating 10
concession arrangements or public service contracts. Such assets are assessed as having a finite useful economic
life of 25 years amortised on a straight fine basis from the date the rcfated facilities are operational, to reflect
the expected pattern of consumption of the expected futurc economic benefits embodied in the asset
Amortisation is recognised within cost of sales on the statcment of comprehensive income.
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

2.7

23

Other finite intangible assels

Other finite inlangible assets are largely made up of waste collection rounds acquired by the group. Such assets
are assessed as having a finite useful economic life of between 10 and 235 years amortised on a straight-line
basis, Amortisation is recogniscd within administrative expenses on the statement of comprehensive income.

Property, plant & equipment and depreciation
Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost less depreciation.

Cost includes the costs that arc directly attributable to bringing the asset into working condition for its intended
use and include the borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of property and cquipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific uscful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Dcpreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off the cost of fixed assets, less their cslimated residual
value, ovcr their expected useful lives on the following basis:

Freehold property - land and - 10 - 30 years, straight line (land is not depreciated)
buildings
Freehold property - airspace - Gn the basis of airspacc used and minerals cxtracted
Leasehold land and buildings - Lease term
Landfill and quarry engineering - On the basis of airspace uscd and minerals ¢xtractcd
Plant and machinery - 3 = 30 years, straight line
Mator vehicles - 3 - 15 years, straight line
Fixtures and fittings - 3 - 15 years, straight linc
Assets under construction - Depreciation commences upon completion of asset
Investments
Company
Subsidiary undertakings

Investents in subsidiaries are valucd at cost less provision for impairment.

Group

Associated and Joint venture undertakings

Invesoments in associates and joinl ventures are stated at the amount of the Group's share of net assets, The
profit and loss account includes the Group's share of the associated and joint venture companics' profits after

taxation using the equity accounting basis.

Other fixed asset investments
Other fixed asset investments are measured at fair value.

24



SUEZ Recycling and Kecovery Huldings UK Ltd

Nates to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

2.9 Leases
The Company as a lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The Company
tecognises a right-of-usc asset and a corresponding lease Lliability with respect 1o all lease agreements in which
it is the lessce, exeept for shori-term leases {defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases
of low value assets. For these leases, the Company recognises the [ease payments as an operating ¢xpense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the Jeasc unless snother systematic basis is more roprescntative of the time
paltuin in which economic henafits tram the lcased agsct are consumed.

Lease payments included in the measurcment of the euse liability comprise:

« f{ixed lease payments (inciuding in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives;

The fcase liability is included in 'Creditors' on the Statement of financial position. The lease liabifity is
subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount io reflect interest on the lease liability {using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding leusc Hability, lease payments
made at or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost
fcss accumuiated depreciation and impairment [osses.

Right-of-usc asscts are depreciated over the shorier period of lease term and usetul life of the underlying asser.
I a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cosi of the right-of-use asset reflects thai the
Company expects to excrcise a purchase option, the related right-of-use assel is depreciated over the usefut life
of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The ripht-of-use assets are included in the Tntangible Assets’, Tangible Fixed Assets’ and 'Investment Property’
lines, as applicable, in the Statement of financial position.

The Company applics [AS 36 to determinc whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment luss as described in note 2.27.

As a practical expedient, IFRS 16 permits a lessee not o scparate non-lease components, and instcad account
for any lease and associated non-lease components as a single arrangement. The Company has used this practical
expedient.

The company has the tight 1o opi for rencwal or lermination on certain properly and equipment leases it has
signed as lessce, and uses its judgment to determine if there are strong economic incentives to excrcise them
and therefore include the lease payments within the lease Liability calculation.

2.10 Financial instrument(s

The Group rccognises financial instruments when it becomes a party to the contractual arrangements of the
instrument. Financial instrumcnts are de-recognised when they are discharged or when the contractual terns
cxpire. The Company's accounting policies in respect of financial instnuments transactions dre explained below:

Financial assets
The Group recogniscs its financial assets at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision
for impainnent.

The Group assesses possible increase in credit risk for financial asscts measured at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period. For trade reccivables the simplificd approach is used, and the loss atlowance is measured
at the estimate of the lifetime expected credit losses. The amount of any loss allowance is recagnised in profit
or loss.
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2.11

Impairment of financial assets
The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses. The amount of expected credit losses is
updated at cach reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

The expected credit losses are estimated based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that arc specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessmenl of both the current as
well as the forecast {uture condilions at the reporting date.

‘1o mecasure the expected credit losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past duc. The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade reccivables for the same types of contracts. The group has
therefore concluded that the expected loss rates for trade receivablces are a reasonable approximation of the foss
rates for the contract assets.

The expected loss rates are bascd on the payment profiles of sales over a period of 36 months before 31
December 2019 or 1 January 2019 respectively and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within
this period.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the differcnce between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract and al! the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial rccognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and suppornabie, including

historical expericnce and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

Financial linbilities
The Group classifies a of its {inancial liabilities as liabiiities at amortised cost.

At amortised cost

Financtal liabililies at amartised cost including bank borrowings are initially rccognised at fair value net of any
transaction costs directly attributable to the issue of the instrument. Such interest bearing liabilities are
subsequently mcasured at amortised cost using Lhe effective interest rate methoed, which ensures that any interest
cxpense over the period to repayment is at a constant rate on the balance of the liability carried into the statement
of (inancial position.

Derivative financial instroments and hedging
Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. However, wherc derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see below).

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in cash flows of a recognised
asset or liability, ot a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part of any gain or loss on the derivative
financial instrument is recogniscd in other comprehensive income. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
recognised immediately in the prufit and loss.

The associated cumulative gain or loss is remaved from cquity and recognised in the income statement in the
same period or periods during which the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or loss.
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2,12 Services concession financial asset

2.13

In accordance with [FRIC 12 and the various provisions of IFRS, the Group has determined the appropriate
treatment of the principal assets of. and income streams from, PF1 and similar contracts. Resulis of ali service
concessions which fall within the scope of [FRIC {2 conform to the foliowing policics depending on the rights
to consideration undcer the scrvice cancessions:

Service concessiuns trested as financial assets

The Group rccognises a financial asset arising from a service concession arrangement when it has an
unconditional contraclual right to receive cash or another financial asset from, or at the direction of, the grantor
for lthe construction or upgrade scrvices provided.

Revenue is recognised by allocating a proportion of total cash receivable to construction income and service
income. The consideration received will be allocated by reference Lo the relative fair valuc of the services
delivered, when the amounts are scparately identifiable. Construction revenue is based on cost incurred plus a
predicted profit margin,

During the operational stage. cash received in respect of the service concessions is aliocated to service and
maintenance revenue based on its fair value, with the remainder being allocated between capital repayment and
interest income using the effective itcrest method.

The financial asscts are held as loans or receivables in accordance with [FRS 9: ‘Financial instruments:
Recognrition and measurement’. Financial assets are rccognised initially at fair value. Subscquent (o initial
recognition. they arc measyred at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment losses.

The Group has entered into a number of coniracts to provide waste management services on behalf of local
authorities {*the customer’). The Group is contractually obliged to design, build and operate waste [lacilities,
including household waste recycling centres, materials recycling centres, civic amenity sites, transfer stations
and an Energy from Waste plant on behall of the customer, and has the right to use these facilities to provide
waste management services, The grantor {the customer} has agreed to provide a minumum guaranteed tonnage
of wastc to the facility and will pay a fixed price per tonnc for this level of waste, with any further tonnage being,
subject to a different rate. The Group in retumn, will remove and treat the waste and is obliged te maintain the
fucilities under lifecycle clauses within the contract,

The Group has the right to both accept and process third party waste, and for some contracts to generate
electricity revenues at the waste facilities.

There are provisions in the contract for termination (and related compensation) in the event of default or
voluntary fermination by the opcrator or grantor. There is provision in the contract for an extension of the

contract period. The contract specifies that the wasle management facilities are to be retumad to the customer
at the end of the contract in an appropriate condition.

For some service arrangements the Group has the contractual right to charge users of the public service; to
rcfleet this an intangible asset is recognised as detailed in 2.6.
Inventories

Inventories relate to spare parts and fuel and are valued at cost alter making due allowance for obsolele and
slow moving items. Cost is based on the cost of purchase on a first in, [irst out basis.
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2.14

1.15

2.16

2.17

2.18

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the inceme
statement except 1o the extent that it relates to ilemns recopnised in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted al the balance sheet date, and any adjuslment to tax payazble in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following tempuorary differences
are not provided for: the initial recopnition of assets or liabilitics 1hat affect neither accouniing nor Laxable profit
other than in 4 business combination. The amount of deferred tax provided is bascd on the expecied manner of
realisation or scttlement ol the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A delerred tax asset is recognised only to the exicnt that it is probable that future 1laxabic prolits will be available
ugainst which the temporary diflcrence can be utilised.

Foureign currencics

Monetary assets and liabilities denorninated in foreign currencies are ranslated into sterling at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Research and development

Research expenditure is written off in the year in which it is incurred.

Pensions

The SUEZ R&R Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme and the pension charge represents the
amounts payable by the Group to the fund in respect of the year. Contributions are made by the company or
Group and the employees w a separately administered fund.

The Company is the sponsoring entity for a number of defined benefii pension schemes and the pension charge
is based on full actuariaf valuations dated between 31 December 2018 and 5 April 2019.

In accordance with TAS 19 'Employee benefits', the service cost of the pension provision relating to the period,
together with the cost of any benefits relating to past scrvice, is charged to the profit and luss account. A charge
equai to the increase in the present valuc of the scheme liabilities (because the benefits are closer to settlement)
and a credit equivalent to the Group's long-term expected retumns on assets (bascd on the market value of the
scheme assets at the start of the period) is included in the profit and loss account under 'Net finance charge on
pension scheme obligations'.

The difference between the market value of the assets of the scheme and the present value of the accrued pension
liabiltties is shown as an asset or liability on the balance sheet net of deferred tax.  Any difference between the
expected return on assets that is actually achieved is recognised as other comprehensive income along with
differcnces arising from experience or assumption changes.

Provisions for envirunmental and landfill costs and landfill gas revenues
Provisions for environmgenial and landfill costs include provisions associated with the closure and post-closure

of landfill sitcs. The Group estimates its total future requircments for closure costs and for post-closure
monitoring and maintenance of the site afler the anticipated closure.
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Closure costs:
Provision is made for final capping and sitc inspection costs. These costs are incurred during the operating life
of the site and the Group provides for these costs as the permitted airspace is used.

Post closure cosis:
Provision is made for inspection, ground waicr monitoring, leachate management, methane gas control and
recovery, and the aperation and maintcnance costs to be incurred during the period after the site closes.

Post-closure provisions have been shown at net present valuc.  The current cost estimated has been inflated at
2.90% (2018 - 2.90%) and discounted by between 2.75% and 5.76% (2018 - between 2.72% and 5.76%). The
unwinding of the discount element is shown in the financial statcments as a financial item.

Future revenues from the generation of electricity from landfill gas during the post-closure period, where
contracts arc in place for its sale, are deducted from the provision balances and are discounted in line with the
post-closurc provision.

2.19 Equity settled share-based payments

In accordance with [FRS 2, *Share-bascd Payments', the cost of share options issuwed by SUEZ Recycling and
Recovery Holdings UK 1.td's ultimate parent company SUEZ SA, to the Group's employces is charged to the
profit and loss account gver the performance and vesting periods of the instruments.  The cost is based on the
fair value of the awards made at the datc of the grant adjusted for the number of awards expected to vest. The
credits associated with the amounts charged to the profit and loss account are included in retained
earnings/losscs.

2.20 Capitalisation of finance costs

2.21

The interest and {inance costs attributable to the financing of separately identifiable major capital projects prior
ta the date of completion, meeting the criteria of qualifying assets, are capitalised and depreciated over the
useful economic life of the project.

Impairment of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets

In accordance with [AS 36, impairment tests are carried out on intangible assets and on property, plant and
equipment whenever there is an indication that the assets may be impaired. Such indications may be based on
cvents or changes in the market environment, or on intemal sources of information. Intangible assets that are
not amottised arc tested for impairment annually.

Impainment indicators

This impairment test is only carricd out for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for the defined
useful lives when there are indications of an alteration in their valuc. In general, this arises as a result of
significant changes in the operational environment of the asscts or from a poorcer than expected economic
performance.

The main indications of impairment used by the Group are:

= cxtemnal sources of information:

- significant changes in the economic, lechnological, political or market environment in which
the entity operates or to which the asset is dedicated,

- fall in demand;

e internal sources of information:
- evidence of obsolescence or physical damage not budgeted for in the depreciation/amortization

schedule,

- worse-than-expected performance.
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Impairment

Items of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets are tested for impairment at the level of the individual
asset or cash-generating unit as appropriate, determined in accordance with IAS 36. If' the recoverable amount
of an asset is {ower than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the recovcrable amount by
recording an impairment loss. Upon recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciable amount - and possibly
the useful life — of the asset concemned is revised.

Impairment losses recorded in relation to property, plant and cquipment or intangible assets may be
subsequently reversed if the recoverable amount of the assets is once again higher than their carrying value. The
increased carrying amount of an item of property, plant or equipment attributable to a reversal of an impairment
loss may not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation/amortization)
had nu impairment ioss been recognized in prior periods.

Measurement of recoverable amount

In order to review the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, the assets are,
where appropriate, grouped into cash-generating units (CGUs) and the carrying amount of each unit is compared
with its recoverable amount.

For uperating entilics which the Group intends 1o hold on a long-term and going concem basis, the recoverable
amount of a CGU ¢erresponds 1o the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. Value in use
is primarily determincd based on the present value of future operating cash fTows and a terminal value. Standard
valuation techniques are used bascd on the following main economic data;

» discount rates based on the specific characteristics of the operating entities concemed;
s terminal values in line with the available markcet data specific (o the operating segments concerned and
growth ratcs associated with these terminal values, not to exceed inflation.

Discount rates arc determined on a post-tax basis and applied to post-tax cash flows. The recoverable amounts
calculated on the basis of these discount rates are the same as the amounts obtained by applying the pre-tax
discount rales to cash flows estimated on a pre-tax basis, as required by [AS 36.
For operating enlitics which the Group has decided to sell, the related carrying amount of the assets concerned
is written down to the estimated market value less costs of disposal. When negotiations arc ongoing, this is
determined based on the best estimate of their outcome as of the reporting date.

In the event of a decline in value, the impairment loss is recorded in thc consolidated income statcment under
impairments.

2.22 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity, Mandaterily redeemable preference shares in the Company or
subsidiaries of the Group are classitied as iiabilities.
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Judgments in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimation process, the Group regularly revises its estimates in light of currently
available information. Final outcomes could differ from those estimates.

The key esthuates used by the Group in preparing the financial statements relate mainly tn the below; canrying
amounts al the balancc sheet dates can be found in the notes as relerted 10 below:

*  The measurement of:
- the recoverable amount of goodwill and intangible assets. {note 15 — Dee 201Y9: £167,290,000)
- the measurement of the recoverabie amount of property, plant and cquipment (note 16 — Dec 2019:
£278,741,000).
- the measurcment of the rceoverable amount of investments (note 17 — Dec 2019: £2,601,000).

Judgement is applied in respect of identifying and measuring impairment. Tmpairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. See note 2.21 for more detail.

#  The recoverablc amount of foventories (notc 18 — Dec 2019: £12,549,004).
The judgement of whether the carrying value of the inventory exceeds its recoverable amount.

¢ The measurement of {inancial instruments (note 25 — Dec 2019: Financial Asscls: £643.812,000, Financial
Liabilities: £604,576,000).
Where the fair value of financial assets and firancial liabilities rccorded in the staternent of tinancial
position cannot be derived from active markets, their fair valuc is determined using valuation technigues
including the discounted cash flow maodel. The inputs to thesc models are taken from observable markcts
where possible. Where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair vatues. The
Jjudgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, sredit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financiai instruments.

s The measurement of provisions (note 26) and the consideration of whether provision is required. Sce note
2.18 for detail of measurement, judgements and estimates used. (Dec 2019: £94,104,000)

s The judgement of whether a contract falls under IFRIC 12 and then the classification of concession
arrangeiments between the concession debtor madel, the intangible asset modcl and the bifurcated madel,
along with the basis on which cash received under concession arrangements is recognised (notes 15 and
19 — Dec 2019: Intangible Asset: £67,324,000, Concession Debtor: £128.199,000).

#»  Pension obligations are measurcd on the basis of actuarial calcuiations, (Note 31 — Dec 2019: Liability
£13,639,000). The Group considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations are appropriate
and documented. However, any change in these assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting
calculations.

= ludgement in applying IFRS 15. The group estimales the fair value of the transaction price allocated to
each separate performance obligations based on historical expericnces of services rendered in similar
eircumstances. The main judgement relate to the service congession arrangemenis see note 2.12 for more
detaii.

As well as relying on estimnates, the Group's management also makes judgments to define the appropriate accounting
treatment to apply to certain activities and transactions. when the cffective [FRS standards and interpretations do

not specifically deal with the related accounting issue.
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This particularly applics in relation to the recognition of concession arrangements.

3. Judgments in applying accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainiy (continued)

At the date ol signing the financial statements, the Group has an ongoing dispute with a key public sector customer
(the Customer). The dispute stems from a different contractual interpretation of the trigger for 'Acceptance” of an
New Development Project’s facilitics, including Facility A and Facility B. On ‘Acceptance’ the Group is entitled
to start 1o be paid by the Customer for building these new facilities (the ‘Increased Payments’):

» ‘The Group’s nterpretation is that ‘Acceptance” occurs on the Works subcontractor achicving agreed
performance tests for each of Facility A and Facility B.  This was achieved in 2019 for Facility A and in
2020 for Facility B and was confirmed by an Independcnt Testing Agency (as the Works subcontract
requires} and there is no dispute between the Group and the Works subcontractor in relation to this.

e  The Customer’s interpretation is that for the respective agreed performance test 1o amount to “Acceptance”
each of Facility A and Tacility B must successfully complete a test of reliability as set out in the Works
subcontract.

The Group accounts for its relevant contract is a concession arrangement under IFRIC12 and has recognised a
financial asset measured at amortised ¢ost. The Group have rccognised impairment losses {sec note 13) in respect
of the period from the year end date to the date the performance tests were passed.

Reflected in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 is a further provision (note 13) for the
impairment of the concession debtor for £9.6m, which is the value of the Increased Payments in dispute for the
period from agreed performance tests being achieved for Facility B and the related test of reliability being
completed. At the date of signing these financial statements, the Independent Certifier has not yet provided the
Group with the rclevant certificale of Acceptlance. If it is determined that the Independent Certifier does provide
the relevant certiflicatc on the basis that the related test of reliability is confirmed as successfully completed in 2020,
then the £9.6m covers the maximum exposure that the Group has for the Increased Payments not yct recovered. If
the relevant test of reliability is not so confirmed, further provision may be required for unrccovered increased
payments.

The Group and the Customer are actively seeking resolution to the matter in line with the provisions of their contraci.

4. IFRSs issued

The adoption of the following mentioned standards, amendments and interpretations in the current year have not
had a material impact on the Company’s financiul statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 with the
exceplion of IFRS 16 - ‘Leases’ whose impact is disclosed below:

* ‘Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle,’ 1 January 2019.

»  'Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments 16 [FRS 9 | January 2019

»  ‘Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to IAS 28) 1 January 2019.
*  'Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amcndments to TAS 19) 1 January 2019,

& IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Trcatments' | January 2019.

s TFRS 16 'Leases' [ January 2019,

The adoption of the following mentioned standards, amendments and interpretations in future years are not
expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements:

¢ 'Definition of a Busincss (Amendments to IFRS 3) 1 January 2020.
s "Definition of Matcrial (Amendments 1o IAS | and TAS 8)' | January 2020.
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4. IFRSs issued {continued)

IFRS 16

The Company has applicd IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative ¢ttect
of initial application is recognised in retained eamings at I January 2019

For leascs that were classitied as finance leases under 1AS 17, the carmying amount of the right-of use asset and the
leasc liability @1 1 January 2019 are determined at the carrying amount of the kease asset and fcase liability under
[AS 17 immediately before that date.

The following tables summarise the impacts of adopting new reporting standards on the Company's financial
statements.

Statement of financial position (extract)

1 January
2019
31 December Adjusted
2018 IFRS16 balance
£000 £000 £000
Nen-current assets
Intangible assets and goodwill 167,654 - 167,654
Property, plant & equipment 159,868 48,457 303,325
[nvestments 4 - 4
Investments in associates and joint
ventures §,129 - 5,120
Financial assets 209 841 - 209 841
642,487 48,457 690,944
Current assets
Inventories 9,419 - 9,419
Financial assets 5,396 - 5,39
Trade and other receivabies 388,697 497 389,194
Cash and cash equivalents 32.693 - 32,693
436,205 497 436,702
Current Liabilitics
Interest bearing loans and borrowings (27,126) (9,998) (37,124)
Trade and other payables (284,452) - (284,452)
Carporation tax payable {1,563) - (1,565)
(313,143) (9,998) (323,141)
Net current asscts 123,062 113.562
765,549 804,506
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Total assets less current tiabilities

I Janwary
2019
31 December Adjusied
2018 IFRS16 balance
Naon-curreat Liahilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings (272,752) (38,956) (311,708)
Other non-current financial liabilities (41) - (41)
Provisions for Habilities
Deferred tax liability 9,416) - (9,416)
Provisions {920,017} - {90.017)
Net assets excluding pension scheme liabilities 393,323 393,323
Net defined benefit pension scheme liability {10,598} - (19,598)
Total net assets
382 725 - 382,725
Equity
Called up share capital 373,741 - 373,741
Share premium account 14,471 - 14,471
Capital redemption reserve 3,457 - 3,457
Hedge reserve (50,048) - (50,048)
Other reserves 11,793 - 11,793

Retained eamings

29,027

29017

Total shareholder’s equity 382,441 - 382,441
Non-controlling interests 284 - 284
Taotal equity e 382725 LI _ NS

On adoption of IFRS 16, the group recognised lease liabilitics in relation to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases” under the principles of [AS 17 Leases. These liabilitics are measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January
2019. The company used incremental borrowing with a range between 1.0!% and 2.19% translating to a weighted
average lessce’s incremental borrowing rate of 1.7%.

In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the group has used the following practical cxpedients permitted by the
standard:

*  applying a singlc discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

*  relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as an altemative to performing an impairment
review — there were no onerous contracts as at 1 Junuary 2019
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*  accounting for operating leases with a remaining lcase term of less than 12 months as at | January 2019 as
shori-term leases
¢ excluding initial dircet costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of injtial application, and
*  using hindsight in detemining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the

lease
2019
£000
LAS 17 Uperalihg léasé comihitiments disclosed as at 31 December 2048 59513
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate of at the date
of initial application 48,563
(Add): contracts transferred from ather group companies 391
Lease hability recognised as at t January 2019 48,954
Of which are:
Current lease liabilities 9,998
Non-current lease liabilitics 38,956
48,954

Contracts transferred from other group companies relate to commitments previously recognised in the entity which
used the underlying asset and have, under IFRS16, been transferred to the entity which legally holds the lease
agreement.
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for the year ended 31 December 2419

5. Turnover

Recognised over time
Construction revenue
Recognised at a point in time
Disposal of waste

Salcs of recyclates

Electricity Revenue

2015 2018
£009 Looe
11,963 3,482
685,796 605,206
45,798 73,621
40,554 37.482
784,111 719,791

In the case of Service Concession Revenue the customer pays a fixed plus variable amount based on the contractual
terms. 1f the services rendered by the company exceed the payment, a contract asset is recognised, if the payments
excecd the services rendered a contract liability is recognised.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in the conwrace liability balance at the beginning of the

period was £13,932,000.

Revenue recognised in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods amounted to

£nil,

At the year end a total of £17,530,000 of revenue is still to be recognised in relation to remaining performance

obligations that have partially been satisfied.

£1,851,000 of assets are currently recognised in relation to cost incurred to obtain or fulfil a contract under [FRS (5.

United Kingdom
Rest of European Unien
Rest of world

6. Other income

QOther operating income

Other operating income relating to settlement claims settled after the balance sheet date. See note 35.

2019 2018
£000 £000
773,937 714,784
4821 2,283

e 383 ..2722
784.111 719,791
2019 2018
£000 £006
29,215 -
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7.

Operating profit
The operating profit is stated after charging:

2419 2018

£000 £0410
Service ¢oncession costs 17,496 4,680
Amortisation - intangiblc {ixcd assets 5,738 5,036
Depneciatlon uf pruperly, plad & eyuipmeut 29,568 2,417
Inventories recognised as an expense during the period 15,645 21,060
Foreign exchange losses 2 14
Auditor's remuneration * 438 447

Auditor's remuneration - audit related assurance services N —

* Auditors' remuneration relating to the audit of the Company financial statements is £25,000 (2018- £25,000).

The remainder is for the audit of the financial stalements of subsidiaries of the group headed by SUEY. UK Group
Holdings Limited.

There werc no non-audit services provided in the ycar or prior year.

£7,800 was also incurred in relation to the audit of SUEZ R&R pension schemes (2018 - £7,000) and £105,200 in
refation to the audit of associate and joint venture companies (2018- £73,200}.

Staff costs

Staff costs were as follows:

2019 2018

£600 £000

Wages and salaries 157,418 144,549
Social security costs 17,222 16,114
Other pension costs (Note 31} 14,818 11,904
IS X 172,567

The average monthly number of employees, including the directors, during the year was as follows:

Group Company Group Company

2019 2019 2018 2018

No. No. No. No.

Office and management 1,151 38 1,692 636
Operational 4,016 631 3,505 20

— 668 3,997 --636

All employces are employed by SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK Limited and paid by SULEZ Recycling and
Recovery Holdings UK 1.td.
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9.

10.

Directors' remuneration

2019 2018
£000 £004
Remuneration __ 1,130 | <54
Company pension contributions to detined bencfit pension schemes _ 17 "y

The highest paid director received remuneration of £632,000 (2014 - £963,008).

MWone of the direciors exerciscd options over shares in the ultimate parent company in the year ended 31 December
2019 or the prior year.

Share based payments
Employee Share issues:

Sharing 2014:
In 2014, SUEZ launched a global employee shareholding plan, called Sharing. Details of this scheme are disclosed
in previous SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Lid {inancial statements.

‘The lock up period for this scheme ended in July 2019.

Sharing 2017:

In 2017, SUEZ launched its third global cmployee sharcholding plan, called Sharing. Details of this schemc are
disclosed in previous SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd financial statements. 30,250 units were held
at 31 December 2019.

Sharing 2019:

In 2019, SUEZ launched its fourth global employec shareholding plan, called Sharing. This employee share issue
programime is part of the policy to increase employee shareholding and strengthen the relationship between SUEZ
Environment and its employees by offering them the possibility of being more closely associated with the Group's
growth and performance. Two formulas were offered:

A "Classic” formula, which includes a discount and employer contribution and in which the subscriber is exposed to
movements in the share price. In the United Kingdum, a Share Incentive plan (SIP} was implemented. [t allowed
employees to subscribe at the average opening price for the 14 trading days between October 18 and November 7
2019 whilc benefitting from matching shares as well;

A "Multiple” formula, which allows employees to benefit from a leverage effect to supplement their persanal
contribution as well as a discounted subscription price. A swap agreement with the back thal structures the plan
allows employees to benefit from a guaraniee on their personal contribution and a guaranteed minimum return. In
some countrics (especially in the United Stalcs), the mulliple formula was adapted to local laws and Sharc
Appreciation Rights were granted as an alternative.

SIP rules required the CEQ of SUEZ to set the subscription pricc at €11.84 in November 2019. The fair value of the
matching shares has been caiculaied using the method described above. In this case, the shares arc delivered
immediately with no vesting period, but are subject to a 3 year lock-in period. 18,100 units were held at 31 December
2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a charge of £4,000 was recognised regarding SUEZ employee share issue
schemes (2018- £8,000).

38



S1JEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Litd

Notces to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

12.

Finance income

GUroup interest receivable

Interest income from service concession financial assets
Interest recervable o participaung interests

Other interest receivable

Tutal interest receivable and similar income held at amortised cost

Finance costs

laterest on group loans
Other interest payable
Leasc interest

Total interest payable and similar expenses held at amortised cost

Discount on provisions

Other gains and losses

Interest on pensiun scheme assets

Intcrest on pension scheme liabilitics

Logs on financial asscts held at amortised costs

Other gains

Provision for the impairment of financial assets held at amortised costs

2019 2018

£000 £000

1,521 1,260

10,613 13,375

8,729 10,008

56 3,191

— 20921 27,834
2019 2018

£000 £000

20,445 22,512

3,108 3,017

1,674 559

25,227 26,128

3,273 2,841

.. 285m0 _ 28989
2019 2018

£000 £000

2,722 2,444

(2,893) (2,751)

(12,631) 20,818)

8,900 -

(9,600) -

e 13, 502) 21,125

The loss on financial assets held at amortised costs are net losses in relation 1o service concession financial assets
and revaluation due to changes in timings and amounts of expected cashflows relating to delays in construction and
commencement of operation. Other gains are the recognition of [.Ds from EPC contraclor relating to these delays.

Provision for the impairment of financial assets held at amortised costs are in relation to disputes as detailed in note

3.
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14. Taxation

Analysis of tax charge in the year
Current tax (see note below)
Current tax charge

Adjustments in respect of prior periods

Total current tax

Deferred tax
Ornigination and reversal of timing differences

Adjustment in respect of prior periods
In relation to defined benefit pension schemes

Total deferved tax

Tax on profit through income statement
Tax charged directly to equity

Current tax
Deferred tax charge

40

2019 2018
£000 £000
il 140
(1,188) 853
ain 995
2,702 1,548
(2,572) 1,704
207 (103)
337 3147

26 4,742
(724) 673




SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019
14.  Taxation (continued)
Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tax assessed for the year is lower than (2018 — higher than) the standard rate of corpotation tax in the UK of 19%
(2018— 19%). The differences are explained below:

2019 2018
£000 £000
\
1
Accounting profit before tax —_— 13,909 7.776
Pro{lt on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of corporation
tax in the UK of 19% (2018 - 19%) 2,643 1,477
Effects of:
Non-tax deductible amortisation of goodwil! and impairment - -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes, other than goedwill
amortisation and impairment 1,206 691
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods (3,760) 2,559 i
Share of profit of associates and joint ventures 3%0 915 '
Non-taxable incotme {111) {1,330
Discount on tax losses -
Changes in taxation rate (342) (170)
!
‘T'otal tax charge tor the year _ 26 4,142

Factors that may affect future tax charges
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Finance Act 2020 was substantively enacted on 17 March 2020. The rate

applicable from | Aprit 2020 now remains al 19%, rather than the previously enacted reduction to 17%. This change has
not been rccogniscd in these financial statements with deferred tax continuing 10 be recognised at 17%.
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK L.¢d

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2419

15. Intangible fixed assets (continued)
Impairment review of goodwill

The Group reviews at each reporting period whether there are any indicators of impairmen. in accordance with [AS 36
Impairment of Assels. An annual irnpairment review is completed by comparing the carrying amount of the goodwill for
each Cash generating Unit (CGU) to ils recoverahle amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair valuc less costs
of disposal and its value in usc. If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is allocated,
first to reduce the carrying amount of the goodwill and then to the asscts of the cash-generating unit. In the current year all
CGUs have been valued on the basis of valuc in use, rather than fair value less costs of disposal on the basis that it is the
higher of the two vaiuvations.

The key assumptions when calculating the vahue in use are forccust revenue and costs. Management's calculation of value
in usc has been developed from forecast five year cash flows which are prepared on the basis of past performance, cxpectation
of future performance and market information and a consistent growth rate thercafter, based on the underlying assets ot each

division.

The Group has conducted a sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of each CGU’s carrying valuc. The Group prepares
cash flow forecasts derived from the most recenl financial budgets approved by management and extrapolates growth at
2.5% thereafier for 5 years before using the terminus value, using a discount rate of 6.2% (2018: 6.2%). Adjustments are
made for CGUs that have finite eseful lives in terms of landfill sites.

Of the total net book value £65,304,000, £54,299,000 relates to goodwill on the acquisition relating to United Waste, the
trade from which is considered to be one CGU. The calculated recoverable value of'this goodwill is £217,927,000. Sensitivity
analysis shows that the discount rate would need to increase to 23% for the recoverable amount to be equal 10 the net book
value, Of the remaining goodwill, no significant amounts arc attached to any one particular CGU.
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Nates to the financigl statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

16.  Property, plant and equipment (continued)
During the year impairments of £18,108,000 were booked. The impaimments related to: assets which are no longer used in
operations and where the directors have determined that the fair value is nil and therefore been fully impaired; Or where

tellowing a review by management it was found that a sites current carrying value exceeded the recoverable amount.

The nct book value of owned and teased assets included as *Tangible fixed assets™ in the Statement of financial position is
as follows:

2019

£000

Tangible fixed assets owned 229,857
Right-of-use tangiblc {ixed assets 48,884
278,741

P e e ]

lnformation about right-of-use assets is summarised beclow:

Net book value

2019
£000
Land and buildings 28,716
Plant and machinery 5,203
Motor vehicles 14,965
48,884

Depreciation charge for the year ended
2019
£000
[.and and buildings 3,558
Plant and machinery 2,997
Motor vehicles 4,044
10,599
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Notes to the financia) statements
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16. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Graup

Cost

At 1 January 2018

Additions

Mispursals

On acquisition of subsidiaries

Transfer between classes

At 31 Dccember 2018

Depreciation

At | January 2018

Charge for the year

On dispasals

Transfer between wider UK
group

[mpairment charge

At 31 December 2018

Net book value

At 31 Decomber 2018

At 31 December 2017

Land and Plant and Motor Fixtures and Asscts under
buildings  machinery vehicles fittings construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
402,324 319,300 57,594 26,719 20,788 826,725
2,380 8,394 2,750 1,739 12,599 27,862
(272) {6,064) (10,174) {67) - (1657
- 172 - - . 172
3,363 7,032 1.417 5,013 {16.825) -
407,795 328,834 $1.587 33,404 16,562 23K, 182
298,077 200,876 42,151 23,201 - 564,305
6,028 16,769 4,149 2471 - 29,417
{259} (5,311) (9,992} &7 - (15,629)
210 - - 210
Py - 11 - - 11
303,846 212,544 36,319 25,605 - 578314

— 103,949 _ 116,290

HH,247 118.424
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK 1.td

Notes t¢ the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

16.

Property, plant and cquipment (continued)

Company
Cost

At ! January 2018

Additions

Transfers intra UK
group

Disposals

Transfer between
classes

At 1 January 2019

Additions

Translers intra UK
group

Disposals

Transfer between
classes

At 31 December 2019
Depreciation

At I January 2018
Charge for the year
On disposals
Transfers intra UK
group
At 1 January 2019
Charge for the year
On disposals
Impairment
Transfers intra UK

group

At 31 December 2019

Net book value
At 31 December 2019

At 37 December 2018

Land and Plant and Motor Fixtures and Assets under
buildings  machinery vehicles fittings construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
5,335 2969 2,810 24,677 12,633 48,424
139 2821 367 1,356 7,217 12,100
- (3,278) 3 - - (3.273)
. - - (38) - {38
2,969 3,594 - 5,474 (12,037) -
8,443 6,108 3,180 31,669 7813 57,213
- 212 - 1,358 1,747 3,317
(155) 114 (1,757 - (6,122) (1,920
- (1 {1,255) (138) - (1,394)
(2,965) 2,471 1 664 4,771 -
5,323 3.962 169 33,553 8,209 51216
633 2,072 2,773 21552 - 27,036
27 683 47 2,272 - 3.029
- - - (37 - 37}
- f415) - - - (415}
660 2,340 2,820 23,787 - 29,607
(59) (222) 20 2,302 - 2,041
- - ¢1,251) (137) - (1,388)
- 41 - 9 - 120
{116y 209 (1.420) - {1,321)
491 2.368 169 26,031 - 299059
4,832 1,594 - 7.522 8209 22,157

7,783 . 360 RS R
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

17.  Fixed asset investments

Group
Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2019

Dividend paid

Share of profit

Share of other comprehensive income

At 31 December 2019

Impairment

At I January 2019 and 31 December 2019
Net book value

At 31 December 2019

At 3! December 2018

Other
Investments fixed asset Tnvestment in
in associates  investments joint ventures Total
£oag £000 £600 £000
4,555 4 565 5124
(5,119) - 250} (5,369)
1,733 - 9% 1,827
1,019 - - 1,019
2,188 . 4 49
2,188 4 409 2,601
4,553 4 565 5.124

Loans to associatcs, as disclosed in note 19, are also treated as parl of the group’s net investment in the associate.
The cumulative amount of unrecognised share of total other comprehensive loss, refaling to associates’ hedge
reserves, amounted to £2,165,000 at 31 December 2019 (2078 - £nil).

Aggregate amounts of the group’s share of associates:

(1.oss) from continuing operations
Other comprchensive income

Total comprehensive income

Agpregate amounts of the group’s joint ventures:

Profit from continuing operations

Tolal comprehensive income

2019 2018
£000 £000
(2,148) 4, 915)
8,418 8,553
6,270 3.638

2019 2018
£000 £000

94 102

9 102

A Joint Venture of the group has unrecognised tax losscs of £136,000 at 31 December 2019 (2018: £Nil). These
havc not been recognised because of uncentainty regarding the future profitability of the company.
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Notes to the financial statements
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18.

17. Fixed assetl investments (continued)

Company
Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2019

Additions
Disposais

At 31 December 2019
Impairment

At [ January 2019
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2019
Net book value
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Details of the subsidiarics, joint ventures and associates can be found under note 34.

Inventories

Spare parts

Ervestments
in subsidiary
companies

£000

821,695

821,695

283,129

283129

538,566

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£000 L0006 £080 £000
12,549 9,419 - -
e —— 1 Ry 49 9.419 I -

In the yeur ended 31 December 2019 £25,645,000 (2018 £21,060,000) was the amount of inventoty recognised as
an cxpense by the Group. In the year ended 3] December 2019 the company recognised £nil {2078 £nil) of inventory
as an cxpense. For both the company and the group £nil has been written down in the year (20/8; £nil).

The difference between purchase price or production cost of inventories and their replacement cost is not material.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

19.- Trade and other receivables and financial assets

Graup Compaay
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Due after more than one year
Trade and other receivables
Amounts owed by group undertakings - 240,769 250,002
Amounts owed by undertakings in which
the Group has a participating interest 32,779 42,651 - -
Scrvice concession financial asset 122,071 132,763 - .
Contract assets 42,752 28,001 - -
Other non-current financial assets 4,707 6.427 -
_ 202,49 209841 _ 240,769 250.002
Group Company
2019 208 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 L0060
Druc within one year
Financial Assets
Service concession financial asset 6,128 3,396 -
6,128 5.396 -
Trade and other receivables
Tradc reccivables 102,065 Indg 159 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings 205,716 204,390 816,779 808,834
Contract assels 74,917 68,304 - -
Other receivables 37,720 3727 7,590 4,167
Prepayments 5319 8117 391 1819
425,737 388,697 825,260 874,820
Corporation tax recoverable - - 1,336 1,886
o 431,865 394093 826,596 816.706

Contract assets are shown separately above in accordance with IFRS15. The significant change from the prior year
is due to updaies to the phasing of future revenue from maintenance contracts.
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK L.¢d

Notes (o the financial statements
for the year ended 31 Deccmber 2019

19.

Trade and other receivables and financial assets (continued)

Impaired trade receivables

The Group has recognised a provision for bad and doubiful debts, as at 31 December 2019. Trade reccivables with
an initial carrying value of £1,567,000 (2018: £1,740,000) were impaired and fully provided for. Management
consider thal these balances are impaired using the expected lifetime model under IFRS 9. The cxpected credit rate
loss percentage is an average rale, with different expected losses for different customer catcgories.

The following table shows the movement in expected credit losses that has been recognised in trade and other
receivables in accordance with the simplified approach sct out in [FRS 9;

2019 2018
£000 £000
At 1 .January 1,740 1,421
Increase/{decrease) in expected credit losses 938 362
Trade receivables written off during the year as uncolicctable (1,111 {43}
At 31 December 1,567 1,740

As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is, as follows:

Neither Past due byt not impaired
Total past due
nor < 30 30-60 61-90 91-120 >120
impaired days days days days days
£000 £660 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2019 102,065 77,939 14,776 3,781 1,603 1,068 2,898
Fxpected
credit loss 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5% L.5% 1.5%
rate %
Lifetime
expected 1,567 1,197 227 58 24 16 45
credit
losses
2018 104,159 89,695 5,654 3,167 2,376 1,069 2,198

Amounts owed by participating interests:

Amounts owed by participating interests include loans with gross values of £3,652,000 (2018 - £3,457,000)
Northumberland Energy Recovery Holdings Limited, £15,530,000 (2018 - £15,347,000) to South Tyne &. Wear
Energy Recovery Holdings Limited, £37,213,000 {2018 - £34,241,000) to Merscyside Fncrgy Recovery Holdings
Limited, £23,475,000 (2018 - £24,247,000) to West London Energy Recovery Holdings I.imited and £10,704,000
(2018 - £10,836,000) to Cornwall Energy Recovery Holdings Limited. These balances accrue inlerest at between
11% and 13.75% per annum and are repayable at the discretion of the associate.

These loans are recognised net of the Group's share of any total comprehensive losses, above the Group investment
in the associates. At the 31 December 2019 the loans cartying values were £3,652,000 (2018 - £3,457,000), £nil
(2018 - £3,061,000), £6,215,000 (2018 - £8 486,000), £12,728,000 (2018 - £16,812,000) and £10,184,000 (2018 -
£10,836,000) respectively.
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19.

20,

Trade and other receivables and financial assets (continued)

Amounts owed by Group undertakings:

Amounts owed to the Campany by Group undertakings duc afier more than one year related to two separate loans
£110,325,000 (2018 - £102,288,000) and £130,444,000 (2018 - £154,233,000) which accrue interest at between
5.91% - 11% and 7.97%. These amounts are repayable over 6 and I8 years starting from 31% December 2017 and
31st May 2018.

Amounts owed to the Company by {iroup underluk mys Juc witlni one year where the other party i u tading eulily
accrue interesl at 0.75% and are repayable on demand.

Cash and cash equivalents

2019 2018
£000 £000
Group
Cash at bank 12,522 32,684
Pelty cash 9 9
Tozal
12,531 32693
2019 2018
£000 L000
Company
Cash at bank 11,136 30,562
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21,

22.

Current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
[.oans from group undertakings

Lease liability

Rcdeemable preference shares

Trade and other payables

Trade payables

Amounis owed to group underakings

Gther taxation and social security (see
below)

Other liabilities

Contract liability

Accruals

Corporation tax payable

Non-current lishilities (excluding other provisions and defined benefit pension scheme liability)

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
[.ease liability
Loans from group undertakings

Other non-current financigl liabilities
Derivative Financial instrumenls

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£00¢ £600 £000 £660
23327 24,178 23,327 24,178
11,234 1,755 - -
1,193 1,193 - .
— 35754 27026 213,327 24178
41,539 44,085 39,386 42,383
99,083 96,306 363,615 854,218
23,582 21,720 21,448 18936
4,008 1,863 2,978 1772
17,530 15,932 - -
105,483 104, 546 60,735 61,740
) ¥ 7~ 284,452 . 988,162 979,049
E—Al. 1.565 - _
Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
48,275 10,393 - -
229,316 262,359 229,316 262,339
e 2TZ59) C..272752 229316 262,359
7 41 -
[ | __4] = R

Loans from group undertakings include three separate loans of £84,950,000, £137 693,600 and £30,000,000 owed to
SUEZ SA (2018 - £102,288,000, £154,233,000 and £30,000,000). Thesc amounts incurs interest at 4.97%, 7.97%
and 9%, they are repayablc over 5 and 17 years.
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23.

Leases

The Group has lease contracts for various properties, items of plant and machinery and motor vehicles.

Group Company
Lease liabilitics are due as follows:
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
Not later than one year 11,234 1,755 - .
After ene year but not more than five 27,848 5,738 - .
Later than five years 20,426 4,655 - -

The following amounts in respect of lcases, where the Company is a lessee, have becn recognised in profit or loss:

Group Company

2019 2019

£000 £000

Interest expense on lease liabilities (1,674) -

Expenses relating te short-lerm leases (14,769 -

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets, exctuding short-term

leases of low-valuc assets (544) -

Income from subletting of leaschold property 100
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24, Deferred tax

Asset/(liability)/ at beginning of year
Through profit and loss

Through other comprehensive income
On initial application of TFRS 9 & 15

At end of year

The deferred tax (liability)/asset is made up as follows:

Accelcrated capital allowances
Other timing differences

Movements in deferred tax:

Opening balance
On initial application of [FRS ¢ & 15

Profit and loss
Accelerated capital allowances
Other timing difterences

Other comprehensive income
Other timing differences

Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

(9,416) 4.712) 847 1,448

(337 i3.147) {215) f431)

724 (673) (72) {150)

- (884) - -

e £ 029) 9416) ... .560 847
Group Company

2019 2018 2019 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

(13,103) (12,670) 1,119 7,337

4,074 3,254 {559 {450;

e (9,029 o4ae) 560 847

- (884) - -

433) 14,361) {218) (473)

96 1214 3 22

124 (673) (72) f150)
P}, 7 “rod) o (28T) (604)

The deferred tax assets of the Company are considered to be recoverable based on the fiuture taxable profits of the
Company. The dircctors have considered the business plans of the Company in determining that these amounts are
recoverable. The expectation is that the group will make a taxable profit in the future and the deferred tax will be

recovered via group relief.
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25.

Financial instruments

(a} Fair values of fi 1

Trade and other receivables

The fair value of trade and other receivables, excluding the service concession financial asset, is estimated as the presemt
value of futurc cash flows, discounted at the market raic of interest at the balance sheet date it the effect is matetial, less
any tmpairment

Trade and other payables
The fair value of trade and other payables 1s estumated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market

rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect 18 material

Service concession financial dsset
The fair value of service concession financial assets is estimated as Lhe present value of future cash flows, discounted at
the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date if the effect is matenal

Cash and cash equivalenis

The fasr value of cash and cash cquivalents 1s estimated as its carrying amount where the cash s repayable on demand
Where it is not repayable on demand then the tair value 1s estimated at the present value of future cash fiows, discounted
at the market rate of interest at the balance sheet date

Interest-hearing borrowings
Farr value ss catculated hased on the present value of future principal and inierest cash flows, discounted a1 the market
rate of interest at the balance sheel date

Derivative financial instruments

Inlerest rate swaps

The Group has entered into inlerest rate swaps to hedge against volatility of movements in interest rates These have been
designated as cash How hedges.

The fair value of the interest rate swap 15 based on a mark-to-market vaivation This quote is tested for reagonableness by
discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of cach contract and using market interest rates
for a similar instrument at the measurcment date The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows. where
applicable, are based on one month and six month LIBOR yicld curves at the balance sheet date

Foreign exchange contracts

The Group has entered into [orcign cxchange contracts 1o hedge againgt volatility ol movements i exchange rates relaling
to construction paymenis in a subsidiary company Thesc have been designated as cash flow hedges
‘The fair value of the foreign exchange contract is based on mark-to-market valuation

Risk managerment is predominately controlicd hy a central treasury department of the group under policies approved by
the Board of Directors The central treasury department identifics, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
aperalion with the company’s operating units,

There werce no reclassifications ffom the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss during the peniod.

The company’s hedging policy enly allows for effective hedge relationships to be cstablished. Hedge effcctiveness ts
detcrmined at the inception of the hedge relationshup. and through periodic prospective effcctiveness assessments to ensurc
that an cconomic relationship cxists between the hedged item and hedging instrument. The company enters into hedge
refationshups where the cntical terms of the hedging instrament match exactly with the terms of the hedged item, and so
a quatitative assessment of ¢ilectiveness 1s performed If changes in circurnstances aflect the terms of the hedged item
such that the critical terms no longer match exactly with the critical terms of the hedging instrument, the company uses
the hypothetical dervative method is to assess effectiveness

Ineflectiveness is recognised on a cash flow hedge where the cumulative change in the designated component vatue of
the hedging fastrument exceeds an an absolute bases the change in value of the hedged item attnbutable to the hedged
risk. In hedges of the above foreign currency purchases this may arise ift

= the liming of the ransaction changes from what was originally estimated, ar
= differences anse between the credit risk inherent within the hedged item and the hedging instrument
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25. Financial instruments (centinued)
faj Fair values of financial instrumenis (cuntinued)
Fuir value hierarchy

The table below analyses financial instruments measured at fair value, into a fair value hierarchy based on the valuation
technique used to determine fair valuc.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets tor identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are vbservable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)

Level 3: inputs for the assel or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
£000 £000 £600 £000
2019
Derivatives designated as hedging - M - (M
instruments
[ - e = {7)
2018
Derivatives designated as hedging - 1) - (41}
instruments

The fair value of derivatives designated as hedging instruments is based on valuations of the instrument providers.
{b) Credii risk
Financial risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if 4 customer or counterparty to a financial instrument [ails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers.

Grroup policies are aimed at minimising such losses, and require that deferred terms are only granted to customers
who demonstrate an appropriate payment history and satisfly credit worthiness procedures. Debt to non-authority
customers is also protected through credit insurance.

Financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired reiate to customers who have demonstrated an appropriate
payment history and satisfied credit worthiness procedures.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represcnts the Group’s maximum credit exposure. Therefore the maximum
exposure to credit risk at the balance shect date was £646,705,000 being the total of the carrying amount of financial
assets and trade and other receivables shown in the table shown in (a). This exposure is all in the UK.

The Company is not subject to credit risk from external parties, with all of its receivables relating to balances with
fellow Group companies.

(c) Liguidity risk
Financial risk management
Liquidity risk is thc risk that the Group will not be abie Lo meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The SUEZ R&R UK Group, along with its ultimate parcnt company SUEZ BA, has considerable financial resources
together with long-term contracts with a number of customets across different gcographic areas and within different
sectors of the recycling industry. The directors have reviewed the Group’s cashflow forecasts. These forecasts
demonstrate that the Group expects to meet its liabilities as they fall due.
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SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd

Naotes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019

25.  Fimancial instruments {continued)

(e} Market risk
Financial risk management

Muarket risk is the risk that changes in markel prices, such as foreign exchange rates and intcrest rates will affect the Group's
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The Group manages interest rate risk by having swapped its
variabie rate debt into a fixed rate agreement and manages foreign exchange risk by entering into certain foreign exchange
forward contracts.

Interest rate risk

The weasury risk management policy within the associates is to hedge 100% of the variabic ratc borrowings. At 31
December 2019 100% of the associate variable rate borrowings were hedged.

All material hedging instruments are within associate companies and therefore arc not recognised as separate financial
instruments on the consolidaled statement of financial position, they do however impact the Investments in associates and
Joint ventures line along with Trade and other receivables where the loans to associate companics are included in the net
mvestment. The impact of our share of the associate hedging instruments on the statement of financial position as at 31

December 2019 is, as follows:

Notional Carrying Line item in the Change in fair
Amount Amount statement of financial  value
position
£000 £000 £000
Interest rate swaps (164,802) (71,813} Investments in associates {7,660)

and joint ventures and
Trade and other recervables

Ineffectivencss recognised in the Groups share of the results was immaterial.

The impact of the hedging on equity can be seen in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on page 17

Exchange rate risk

In the prior year the Group had entered into a forward exchange contract to avoid volatility in costs of capital expenditure
relating to one of ils subsidiary entities. This agreement constituted a cash flow hedge. With exception to this capital
expenditure, the group do not have any other material exposure to cxchange rate risk,

The Company is not exposed to such interest rate or exchange rate risks.
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Murket risk — Interest rate risk
Profile

Al the balance sheet date the interest rate profile of the Group’s intercst-bearing financial instruments was

2019 2018
£000 £006

Fixed rate instruments
Financial habuilics (252 47) (286.537)
(252,643) {286,537)

Sensitivity anulysis
At 31 Necember 2419 there arc no variable rate instruments.
{f} Capital management

The Group and Company manages ils cash, bank loans and equity as capital. The Group and Company’s principal ubjective
is to ensure that there {s sufficient capital to fund operations and fulfii obligations.

Capital requirements and timings are menitored by the Group and Company management though regular reviews of rolling
cashflow forecasts. The Group has the suppont of its ultimate parent company SUEZ SA, in the form of a rolling credit
facility that the Group and Company can draw down on as requircd.

26. Provisions

Site

restoration

Maintenance Other and
provision pravisiens maintenance Tatal
Group £000 £000 £600 £000
At 1 .January 2019 30,418 4,089 55,510 90,017
Additions 21,776 3,723 6,446 31,945
Amounts used {18,164) (3,486) (9,482) (31,132)
Movemeant on discount - ] 3274 3,274

At 31 December 2019 34,030 ___ 4326 55748 94104

Maintenance provision

Provision has been made for the costs of maintaining and replacing assets as required under the terms of contracts in place
with Local Autherities. The Group expects for these costs to be incurred for more than 15 years.
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26.

27.

28.

Provisions (continued)

Other provisions

Provision has been made for anticipated losses on a small number of loss making contracts held by the Group, as
well as for other potential litigation against the Group. The Group expects for these costs to be incurred over the next
year. Other provisions also includes provision for long-term loyalty bonuses due Lo senior staff. This provision is
expected to be utilised between 1 and 3 years.

Site restoration and maintenance

The Group provides for closure and post-closure costs as permitted airspace in landfill sites is used. Fuli provision
has also been made for the Group's minimum unaveidable cosis in refation to landfill site restoration and maintenance.
The Group expects for these costs to be incurred over the next 60 years.

Other

provisiuns

Company £000
At 1 January 2019 738
Additions 183
Amounts used —_ (S21)
At 31 December 2019 —_— 400

Other provisions

Provision has been made for leng-term loyalty bonuscs due to senior staff. The company expects for this to be utilised
between one and three years.

Share capital

2019 2018
£000 £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
679,528,758- urdinary shares of £0.55 each R 373,741 373,741

These shares carry no right to fixed income or have any preferences or restriciions attached to them.
Nature and purpose of other reserves

Share premium account
A non-distributable reserve where the premium paid for new sharcs above their nominal value is recognised.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption rescrve is a non-distributable reserve into which amounts are transferred following the

redemption or purchase of the Group’s own shares.

Hedging Reserve
The hedging reserves relate to the use of hedge accounting as detailed in accounting policy 2.11.

Other reserves
The other reserves is a non-distributable merger relief reserve relating to historic business combinations where
merger relie{ was applied,
Retained parnings
The profit and loss account is a distributablc reserve made up of retained camings.
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29,

30.

3L

Contingent liabilities

The Group has provided unsecured guarantees to third parties in respect of performance bonds. At 31 December
2019 puarantees outstanding amounted to £128,031,000 (2018 - £127.851,000). These bonds arc duc to expire
between 18 January 2020 and 31 December 2049.

Atthe 31 December 2019 the Group have contingent liabilitics of £45,223,000 (2018 - £34,300,000;/ a5 a result ot a
number of put or pay contracts held.

Jaint venture undertakings also have guaraees outstandiug ot U year ond rolating to performance honde of
£3,696,000 (2078- £3,770,000;.

No liabilities are expected to arise from these contingent liabilities.

The Company has provided unsecured guarantees to third parties in respect of performance bonds. At 31 December
2019 guarantces outstanding amounted to £3,826,000 (2618 - £926,000). These bonds are due to expire 30
September 2021,

Capital commitments

At 31 December 2019 the Group and Company had capital commitments as follows.

Group Company
2019 2018 2019 2018
£000 £004) £000 £600

Contracted for but not provided in these
financial statements

15992 25861 ____ _ - -
Included in capital commitments at 31 December 20E9 is Lnil in relation to the construction of the encrgy from waste
facility in Suffolk (2018 - £1,475,000) and £9,567,000 in relation to the construction of an EcoPurk development in
Surrey (2018 - £18,012,000).

Althe 31 December 2019 the Group shate of capital commitment within associates were as follows:
Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited — £1,600,000 (2618 - £233,000)

West London Energy Recovery Limited — £nil (2018 - £/5,060)

Pension commitments

Group

Defined contribution pension schemes:

The SUEZ. R&R Ciroup operates a defined contribution pension scheme, the assets of which are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.

The pension cost charge represents contributions payable by the Group to the fund and amounted to £12,046,000
(2018 - £9.661,000). Contributions totalling £nil (2018 - £40,000) were payable to the fund at the balance sheet date
and are included in liabilities.
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31

Pension commitments {continued)
Defined benefit schemes:
The Group operatcs the following defined benefit pension schemes:

SUEZ Final Salary Pension Scheme

SUEZ Contract Services Limited Retircment Benefits Scheme

SUEZ (GB) Limited (Charmwood) Retirement Benefits Scheme

The SUEZ Section of the Citrus Plan

BFI Group Pension Scheme

LWS Pension Scheme

Hemmings Group Holdings Limited and Associated or Subsidiary Companies Pension Scheme

The Schemes offer both pensions in retirement and death benefits to members. All the Schemcs arc closed to new
members.

The information presented below has heen made for the tatal of these halances. The Schemes are administered by
Trustecs and the assets are held separaiely to the legal entity that is the Group.

The Trustee board of the Schemes is composed of employer and member nominated Trustees (where the legal
minimum proportion of member nominated Trustees has been upheld). The Trustees are required by law to act in the
best interests of the members of the Scheme, The Trustees arc responsible for the investment policy with rcgard to
the asscts of the Schemes.

The Group considers two measures of the Schemes surplus or deficit. The accounting posilion is shown on the Group
balance sheet. The funding position, calculated at the tricnnial actuarial assessment, is used to agrec contributions to
the Schemes. The two measures will vary because they are for different purpuses, and are calculated at different rates
and in different ways. The key calculation difference is that the funding position considers the expected returns ol
Scheme assets when caleculating the Schemes fiability, whereas the accounting position under IAS 19 discounts
liabilitics based on corporate bond yields.

The amounts in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019, relating o pensions, arc based on the
most recent actuarial valuations for cach scheme updated by Deloitte to take account of TAS19 in order to assess the
liabilities of the scheme at 31 December 2018 and 5 April 2019.

The Schemes expose the Group to acluarial risks such as market (investment) risk, interest rate risk, mflation risk
currency risk and longevity risk.

Invesiment risk

The present values of the Schemes’ liabilities are calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to yields
available on high quality AA rated corporate bend yieids; in other words, from the position of being fully funded
then if the return on the Schemes’ assets were below this rate, it would create a deficit in the Schemes.

Interest risk
A decrease in the corporate bond yield will increase the Schemes® liabilitics; however, this will be partially offset by

an increase in the value on the Schemes® corpurate bond assets.

Longevity risk
The present value of the Schemes liabilities are calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of the

Schemes’ members both during and afler their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the Schemes'

members will increase the Schemes’ liabilities.

Inflation risk
The present value of the Schemes” liabilities are calculated by reference to the future expected pension indexation
(both indexation in deferment and pension increases in payment), which wil! depend on future inflation expectations.
As such, an increase in the expectation of future inflation will increase the Schemes” liabilities.
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31. Pension commitments (continped)

Scheme assets are stated at their market values at the respective halance sheet dates and overall expected rates of retum are

established by the directors following discussions with the Group's actuarics. The [iabilities in the scheme are measured on
an actuarial basis using the projected unit method.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Assets Liabilitics Assets Liahilities

1y 2019 218 2018

£000 £000 £0600 £000

Fair value of scheme asscts 16,925 94,088 15,747 88,746
Present value of obligations {13.619) (111,033) (12.862) £102.229)

Asset/ (Tlinhility) 3,306 (16,945) 2,885 (13,483

The pension scheme assets do not include any ordinary shares issued by SUEZ Recycling and Recuvery Holdings
UK Lid or any property oceupied by SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Litd.

The Group's pension scheme assets will be recovered cither through a reduction in future contribution rates or as a

repayment from the scheme when the last member leaves the scheme.

Changes in provisions and assets for defined benefit pension schemes for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
previous year arc as follows:

Asxets Linbilitics Total

£000 £000 £000

At 31 December 2017 2,137 (15,778) {13.641)

Actuarial gains 885 2,785 3,670

Yxpense for the period {170) {2,700 (2,870

Employer contributions 13 2.210 2,243

Reclassification - - -
At 31 December 2018 2,835 (13,483) (10,598)

Assels Liabilities Total

£000 £000 E000

At 31 December 2018 2,885 (13,483} (10598}

Actuarial gains and (losses) 424 (4,682) (4,258)

Fxpense for the period (64) (1,491) (1,555)

Employer conttibutions 61 2,71 2,772

Reclassification - - -

At 31 December 2019 3.306 (16,945) (13,639)

Actuarial gains and losses in the year all relate to changes in financial assumptions.
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Pension commitments {continucd)
The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:
2019 2018
£060 LOGO
Current service cost (861) (1,355;
Necl intcrest cost (694) 307)
Past service cost - (1,208)
Total | -1 (2,870}
Actual (loss)/return on scheme assets e (4.254) 3,670
None of the pension comnmitments relate to SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holding UK Limited's jeint ventures or
assnciates.
The amounts recognised as other comprehensive gains/losses in the statement of comprehensive income are as
follows:
2019 2018
£000 £000
Actual return less expected return on scheme assets 6,687 (5,944)
Experience gains and (losses) arising on scheme liabilities 1,436 2019
Changes in financial assumptions rcpresent value of scheme liabilities (14,351) 7061
Changes in demographic assumptions represent value of scheme liabilities 1,969 4,572
Actuarial (loss)/gain recognised (4,258) 3,670
Movements in the present value of the defined bencfit obligation were as follows:
2019 2018
£000 £060
QOpening defined benefit obligation 115,001 123,112
Current service cost 861 1,355
Interest cost 3416 2,751
Contributions by scheme participants 156 294
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions {1,969) (4.572)
Acluarial losses/(gains) due to changes in financial assumptions 14,351 (7.061)
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to expericnce adjustment (1,436) 2,019
Past service costs - 1,208
Benefits paid 5918 4611
Closing defined benefit obligation 124,652 115,09
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
2019 2018
£000 £600
Opening {air value of scheme assets 104,493 109,471
Return on plan assets excluding the amount included in the net interest 2,722 2,444
Actuarial gains/({losses) 6,688 (5,.944)
Contributions by employer 2,772 2,243
Contributions by scheme participants 256 290
Benefits paid (5.918) (4.011)
111,013 _.404.493

70



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Haoldings UK Ltd

Naotes to the financial statements
for the year ¢cnded 31 December 2019

31.

Pension commitments (continued)

The cumulative amount ol other comprehensive gains and Insses recognised was £9,410,000 (2078 - £13,664.000).

The Group cxpects 4o contribute £2,801,000 to its defined bencfit pension schemes in 2020.

The major calegorics of seheme assels as a percentage of 10tal scheme assets are as follows:

M9 118
Equitics - guoted 26% 28%
Bands - quoted 67% 66%
Property - quoted 8% 0%
Cash 3% 3%
Other 3% 3%
The allocation of pension assets by gcographical arca of mvestment is as follows:
Europe North Latin Asia and Other Total
America America Oceania
Equities 25.6% 0.2% 0.0% 0.1% 0.1% 26.0%
Bonds 67.0% 0.2% 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 67.3%
Property 0.0% - - - - 0.0%
Cash 33% - - - - 33%
Other - - - - 3.4% 3.4%
95.9% 0.4% 0.0% 8.2% 3.5% 100%

All pension obligations relaic to employees United Kingdom.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages):

Discount rate at 31 December
Future salary increases
Future pension increases
Inflation

Average remaining working life of participating employees

2019

2.05%
1.00%
1.00%
2.15%
10 years

2018

2.70%
1.00%
1.00%
205%
11 years

A halfl percentage point decrease in the discount rate assumption would lead to an increase in pensicn liabilities of

10%.

A half percentage point increase in the inflation assumplion would lead to an increase in pension liabilities of 9%.

In calculating the pension liabilities, the directars, upon consultation with the scheme actuary, have used VITA curves
with improvements according 10 CMI 2018 tables {(non-peaked) with a 1.5% underpin for most schemes. For the
Citrus scheme, the VITA curves have been used with a lang cohort.
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Pension commitments {(continued)
Company

Defined contribution pension schemes:

The SUEZ R&R Group operates a defincd contribution pension scheme, the assets of which arce held separately from
those of the Company in an independently administered fund. The pension cost charge represents contributions

payable by the Company to the fund and amounted 10 £4,163,000 {2018 - £2,887,000).

Defined benefit pension schemes:

The Company operates a defined benefit pension schemc: BFI Group Pension Scheme

Details of the nature of the benefits, governance and valuation method and assumptions used can be found in the

Group disclosure above.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:

Fair vaiue of schemc assets
Present valuc of obligations
Asset

Asset Asset
2m9
£000 £000
16,926 15,747
(13.620) (12,863)
1,306 2,884

Changes in provisions and assets for defined benefit pension schemes for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the

previous year are as follows:

At 31 December 2017
Actuarial gains and losscs
Income for the period
Employer contributions
At 31 December 2018

At 3! Decernber 2018
Actuarial gains and tosses
Lixpense for the peried
Employer contributions
At 31 December 2019

The amounts recognised in profit or loss are as follows:

Current service cost
Net interest (cost}/income
Past service cost

Tatal
72

{Liahility)/Asset

£000
2,137
853
(169)
33

Asset
£000
2,884
425
(64)
61

2,884

3,306

019 2018

£000 £000

@n (51)

67 46

- (164)

e (169



SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holamgs UK Ly

Notes to the financial statements
for the ycar ended 31 December 2019

k1B

Peasion commitments (continued)

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £600
Opening defined benefit obligation 12,863 74,550
Current service cost 27 571
Intercst cost 483 308
Contributions by scheme partiipants 13 H
Actuarial losses/{gains) due to changes in financial assumptions 1,243 (1,508)
Actuarial gains due to changes in demographic assumptions 207y -
Actuarial losses due to experience adjustments 88 -
Past service cosis - 164
Benefits paid (889) (713)
Closing defined bencfit obligation .
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 15,747 16,687
Return on plan assets excluding the amount included in the et interest 446 354
Actuarial gains and (losses) 1,549 1625)
Contributions by emmployer 13 33
Contributions by scheme participants 12 1!
Benefits paid {881 (713)

— 16,928 15,747

The Company expects to contribute £62,000 to its defined benelil pension schemes in 2020.

The major categories of scheme asscts as a percemtage of total scheme assets and geographical split is not currently

available for the scheme.

All pension abligations relate to employees United Kingdom.
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32.

Related party transactions
Group:

Under the provisions of [AS 24, the Group is not required to disclose details of related party transactions between
Group companies where 100% of the voting rights are held within the Group.

Analysis of the Group’s transactions with joint venturcs, associates and other related partics are detailed in this note.
These are categorised as either sales transactions, purchase transactions or financing transactions.

Sales transactions:

Buring the year ended 31 December 2019 and the previous year, the Group undertook sates transactions with related
parties as below:

Outstanding Outstanding
Sales ut year end Sales at year end
2019 2019 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £Ooo
Transactions with associate companies:
Northumberland Energy Recovery Limited 24,462 1 17,709 -
Comwali Energy Recovery Limited 21,500 737 21,825 331
South Tync & Wear Energy Recovery Limited 20,170 1 15,702 -
Merseyside Energy Recovery Limited 14,664 (2,425) 17,169 7
West Loudon Energy Recovery Limited 19,516 57 22,299 128
Transactions with joint ventures:
Lidsey [.andfill Limited 138 95 122 84
Transactions with subsidiaries:
Shropshire Wasle Management Limitcd 129 - 156 -
SUEZ. R&R Kirklees Limited 7,156 - 5,859 -

The Group’s relationships with Northumberland Energy Recovery Limited, Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited,
South Tync & Wear Energy Recovery Limited, Merseyside Energy Recovery Limited, West London Energy
Recovery Limited and Lidsey Landfill Limited are described in note 34 to the accounts.

During the year the group owned 93.3% of the share capital of Shropshire Waste Limited, on the 21 May 2019 the
group purchased the remaining 6.7% and therefore held 100% of the share capital at 31 December 2019,

The Group owns 99.9% of the share capitai (81% of share with voting rights) of SUEZ Recycling and Recovery
(Kirklees) Limited.
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32.

Related party transaction (continued)

Purchase transactions:

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the previous year,

rclated partics as below:

Transactions with associste companies:
Northumberland Energy Recovery [.imited
Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited

South Tync & Wear Energy Recavery Limited
Merseyside Encrgy Recovery Limited

West London Energy Recovery Limited
Transactions with suhsidiaries:

SULEY. R&R Kirklees Limited

Finance transactions

Purchases
LTS ]
£000

5,952
7,699
8.692
5,909
9,591

3,969

the Group undertook purchase transactions with

Qutstanding Ouistanding
at yearend Purchases al year end
m9 2048 2018
£000 £000 £600
- 9,332 -

- 9,994 -

- 7684 -

- 2,978 -

- 9,244 -

- 3,249 B

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the previcus year, the Group undertook financing transactions with

related parties as below:

Transactions with associate companies:
Northumberland Energy Recovery Limited
South Tyne & Wear Encrgy Recovery Limited
Merseyside Energy Recovery Limited

West London Energy Recovery Limited
Corrwall Inergy Recovery Limited
Transactions with subsidiaries:

SUEZ R&R Kirklees Limited

Shropshire Waste Management Limited

Interest

receivahle/

{payable)
2019
£004

391
1,992
2,972
2,172
1,293

175
(66}

75

Loan Loan
receivable Interest receivable/
(payable) at receivable/ (payable) at
year end payable vear end
2019 2018 20i8
£800 L0060 L6060
3,652 3RS 3,457
15,530 1,896 15,347
37,213 3,3%6 34,241
23,475 2,920 24,247
18,764 1411 10,836
22,838 155 23,539
(8,718} 47) (6,261)
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33.

Related party transaction (continued}
Transactions with senior personnel:
The Group’s key executives were the 6 members of the OpCom (2018 — 6 members)

Their compensation was as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000
Salarics 1,407 1,095
Other short lerm benefits 786 622
Post employment benetils 237 214
Share based payments ) 28 1770
Total 2,458 3,70/

Company:
Sales/recharges transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and the previous year, the Company undertook sales/recharges transactions
with related partics as below:

Sales/ Qutstanding Sales/ Qutstanding
Recharges at year end Recharges at year end

2019 2019 2618 2018

£000 £000 L0060 £000
Transactions with associate companies:
Northumberland Energy Recovery |.imited 25 - 43 -
Cornwall Energy Recovery Limited 23 - 26 -
Merseyside Energy Recovery Limited 201 - - -
West London Energy Recovery Limiled 25 - 30 -
South Tyne & Wear Energy Recovery Limited 19 - - -

Amaounts owed ta group undertakings:

At the year ended 31 December 201% the Company was owed £22,586,000 from a subsidiary SUEZ R&R Kirklees
Limited (2018: £21,909,000) on which interest of £175,000 was received in 2019 (2018: £155,000).

The Company’s relationship with Shropshire Waste Management Limited and SUEZ R&R Kirklees Limited is
described in note 34 to the accounts.

Controlling party

At the year end the Company's immediate parent undertaking was SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK Group
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in England & Wales. The Company is a subsidiary of SUEZ SA, a
company incorporated in France. The ultimate parent company at 31 December 2019 is SUEZ SA. The largest group
of which SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Holdings UK Ltd is a member and for which group financial statements are
drawn up is that headed by SUEZ SA, whose consolidated financial statements are avaijlable from Tour CB21, 16
Plas de LIris, 92040 Paris 12 Defense Cedex, France. [n the directors' opinion, the Company's ultimate controlling
party is SUEZ SA.
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34, Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

4, Subsidiaries

Company name

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery

UK LTD **

Dinn Lendfill {Glenfarg) Limited

Group Fabricam Limited***

Midland {.and Reclamation
Limited

Northumberland Wasie
Management Limited

Shropshire Waste Management
Limited

SUEZ UK Environment Ltd **

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery
Kirklees Lid

SULZ Recycling and Recovery
Lancashire [ 1d

SUEZ Recycting and Recovery
North East Ltd **

SHUKCQ 346 LTD **

SHUKCO 347 1LTD

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery
South Gloucestershire Lid

SHIUKCO 348 LTD

SUEZ Recycling and Recavery
Tees Valley Lid

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery
Islc OFf Man Lid *

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery
Surrey Lid

Tync Waste Limited

Cliffeville Limited

SUFZ Recycling and Recovery
Northern Ireland Lid **

SUEZ Recycling and Recovery
Suffulk f.od *

London Recycling & Renewable
Energy 1.td

SHUKCO LTD***

Country

England & Wales
Seatland

England & Wales
England & Wales
Iingland & Wales
England & Wales

England & Wales
England & Wales

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Fngland & Wales

England & Wales
England & Wales

Isle of Man
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Northern Ireland
England & Wales

England & Wales

England & Wales
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Percentage
Shareholding

100
100
e
160
100
33.3

100
100

100
100
100
100
100

100
100

100
100
100

100
100
100

100

100

Description

Municipal services and waste
disposal

Landfiil site operator

Holding company

Landfill site operator

Landfill site operator
{.andfiii site operator

Landfil] site operator i
Wastc disposal and electricity
generation
Wastc disposal and landfill site
operator
Waste disposal and landfill site
operator
Landfill sitc operator
Waste disposal
Municipal services

Landfil site operator

Waste disposal and electricity
gengration

Energy-from-wastc plant operator

Waste disposal

Wasic disposal and landfill sitc
operator

Landfill site operator

Municipal services and waslc
disposal

Energy from waste plant

Property holding Company

Holding Company
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34.  Subsidiaries, joint ventures and assaciates (continued)

a. Subsidiaries (continued)

Percentage
Company name Country Shareholding  Description
SHUKCO 327 LTD*** England & Wales 100 Holding Company
SHUKCO 340 LTD*** England & Wales 100 Holding Company

SHUKCQO 320 Limited ** England & Wales 100 Holding Company
A & J Buli Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Attwoods [sraeli Investments England & Wales 100 Dormant
Limited
Attwoods Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Dorsei Waste Management Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SUEZ Recycling and Recovery England & Wales 100 Dormant
Altermative Fuels 1td
Gulvain Energy Limited Scotland 100 Dormant
Gurteens Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Hemmings Waste Management  England & Wales 100 Dormant
Limited***
LWS Coliection Serviges l.imjted FEngland & Wales 100 Dormant
Nene Valley Waste Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Rylon Waste Disposal Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 303 Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 323 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 336 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCOQO 337 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 338 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 341 L.TD England & Walcs 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 342 LTD England & Wales 160 Dormant
SHUKCO 343 L.TD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCOQ 345 LTD England & Wales 100 Dormant
SHUKCO 350 LTD England & Walcs 100 Dormant
Sid Knowles Waste Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Attwoods Holdings I.imited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SUEZ UK Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
SUEZ Recycling and Recovery UK England & Wales 104 Dormant
Pension Plans Trustees Ltd
Sortwaste Environmental Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
United Waste Property Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
United Water UK Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Whinney Hill Stonc Sales Limited England & Wales 100 Dormant
Wilson Waste Management England & Wales 100 Dormant
Limited
Wm E Christer (Gravel) Limited  England & Walcs 100 Dormant
b. Joint ventures

Percentage
Company name Country Sharcholding  Description
Lidsey Landfill Limited England & Wales 50 Land(ill site operator
NS NORM Limited England & Wales 50 Nuclear decontaminatiot
Glenfarg Organics Limited Scetland 50 Wasle management services

The group holds 50% of the shares and voting rights of the entities and therefore have recognised and accounted for

them as joinl ventures.
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34.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates {continued)

¢. Associates

Yercentage
Sharehoiding
Company namc Country Description
Cornwall Fnergy Recovery England & Wales 33 Holding company
Holdings LTD *
Comwall Energy Recovery LI * Fapland & Waley 13 Wanta dinpogal
Northumbcrland Energy Recovery Lngland & Walcs 425 Holding company
Holdings L.TD *
Northumberland Energy Recovery Fngland & Wales 425 Waste disposal
LTD*
South Tyne & Wear Fnergy England & Walcs 45 Halding company
Recovery Holdings Limited *
South Tyne & Wcar Energy England & Wales 45 Waste management

Recovery Limited *

Merseyside Energy Recovery England & Wales 40 Holding company
Holdings LTD *

Merseyside Energy Recovery England & Wales 40 Waste management
LTD*

West 1.ondon Energy Recovery England & Wales 33 Holding company
Holdings LTD *

West l.ondon Energy Recovery England & Wales 33 Waste management

LTI} *

All shares held are Ordinary Share Capital (including ‘A" and 'B' Ordinary Sharc Capital} aside from SHUKCO
LT and SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Tees Valley Lid where both Ordinary Share Capital and Preference
Shares are held.

* Company has a 31 March year end as key customer is the local authority and thus it is considered beneficial for
the company and the local authority to have co-terminus accounting periods,

** Direct investments of SU/EZ R&R Holdings UK Limited.  All other investments are indircel investments.

Registered office of ali subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates is SUEZ House, Grenfcll Road, Maidenhead,
Berkshire, SL6 1ES. With exception of;

- Binn Landfili (Glenfarg) Limited - 13 Atholl Crescent, Edinburgh, FH3 8ITA.

- Gulvain Energy Limited - 15 Atholl Crescent, Edinburgh, EH3 8HA.

- SUFEZ Recycling and Recovery Northem Ireland L.id - Cleaver Fulten Rankin Solicitor, 50 Bedford Strect,
Belfast, BT2 7FW.

- Glenfarg Organics Limited - Orchard Bungalow Offices, Binn Farm, Glenfarg, Perthshire, United Kingdom,
PH2 9PX.

- SUEZ Recycling and Recovery Isle Of Man Ltd - Isle of Man Energy from Waste Facility, Richmond Hill,
{sle of Man. (M4 LTI

*** SUEZ Recycling & Recovery Holdings UK Limited has provided the necessary parental guarantees under

Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006, to cnable the following companies exemption from audit.

Group Fabricom Limited 01677389
Hemmings Waste Management Limited 00676121
SITUKCO 340 Ltd 03301834
SHUKCG Ltd 1866716
SHUKCO 327 Ltd 03283501
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35,

Post balance sheel events

Covid-19

Since the balance sheet date there has been a global pandemic from the outbreak of COVID-19. The potential impact
of COVID-19 became significant in March 2020 and is causing widespread disruption to normal palterns of business
activity across the world, including the UK, The company is treating this as a non-adjusting post balance sheet event
and therefore the judgements and estimates disclosed in note 3 have not been updated to reflect the impact of this

event.
Claims Settlement

Since the balance sheet date, as mentioned in the Sirategic Report on page 1, setlement claims on the EPC contractors
relating to lost hours at the energy facilities in Cornwall and Wilton have now been settled.  This resulted in £29.2m
of other operating income being rccognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, with a net tmpact on profit
of £13.6m increase after the relcase of related balances recognised in prior periods and accruals for amounts to be
passed on to asseciale companies.

Disputes

As detailed in note 3, events since the balance sheets have led to adjustments being made as a result of an ongoing
disptite with a key public sector customer.
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